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The Colorado River Commission of Nevada (Commission) Financial and Audit 
Subcommittee (Subcommittee) meeting was called to order by Commission Vice 
Chairwoman Kelley at 2:34 p.m. 

Conformance to Open Meeting Law. 

Executive Director Eric Witkoski confirmed that the meeting was posted in 
compliance with the Open Meeting Law. 

B. Comments from the public. (No action may be taken on a matter raised 
under this item of the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically 
included on an agenda as an item upon which action will be taken.) 

Subcommittee Chairwoman Kelley asked if there were any comments from the 
public. There were none. 

C. For Possible Action: Approval of minutes of the December 10, 2019 
meeting. 

Commissioner Stewart moved for approval of the minutes. The motion was 
seconded by Subcommittee Chairwoman Kelley and approved by a 
unanimous vote by those present. 

D. For Possible Action: Discussion, review and possible acceptance of the 
draft Financial Audit for Fiscal Year 2020 Including but not limited to, update 
of audit related activities, potential Issues with the timely completion of the 
audit and discussion of any audit findings. 

Chief of Finance and Administration Doug Beatty introduced the Financial Audit for 
Fiscal Year 2020, stating that the audit, performed by Eide Bailly LLP in conjunction 
with Staff, is substantially complete with the exception of a couple items that are 
awaiting further information. Mr. Beatty explained that of the outstanding items, only 
one item was significant. 

Mr. Beatty then indicated that Eide Bailly typically utilizes State-provided Public 
Employment Retirement System (PERS) census information related to retirement 
liability to complete their audit, but the audit for the State of Nevada has been delayed 
due to the ongoing COVID-19 emergency and has been scheduled to begin In 
January of 2021 . Due to the delay, the information from the state is still not available. 
This Is the only significant Item still awaiting information and It Is anticipated that It will 
be available shortly. Once received, the auditors can verify the numbers related to 
the PERS information already in the financial statements. 

Mr. Beatty stated that though the reports presented during this meeting were drafts 
only, he believes there will be no substantive changes in the final version. 

John Hansen, auditor from Eide Bailly, presented Eide Ballly's draft reports for 
Fiscal Year 2020. Coples of the reports are attached and made a part of the 
minutes. (See Attachment A.) 
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Subcommittee Chairwoman Kirkpatrick asked if the delay in information from 
PERS would affect all State and local government agency audits and if Eide Bailly 
was requesting information from Commission Staff that differed from information 
asked of other agencies. She stated that she had not been made aware, via her 
other official positions, of a delay with PERS causing wide-spread issues for 
governmental agency audits for FY 2020. 

Mr. Hansen answered that Eide Bailly requires the same information from 
Commission Staff as any other government agencies for whom Eide Bailly 
performs audits, and the same information is requested by Nevada State auditors 
themselves. 

Subcommittee Chairwoman Kirkpatrick replied that she did not want this delay to 
necessitate the submission of a late report by Staff, again asking what information 
Eide Bailly was requesting that differed from that asked for by other agencies to 
complete their own audits. 

Mr. Hansen answered that Eide Bailly needed to perform certain procedures using 
the PERS census data that was used to create their actuarial calculations and was 
not personally aware of why the state has been unable to provide the information. 

Subcommittee Chairwoman Kirkpatrick asked that Eide Bailly provide Staff with a 
written statement detailing the reasons for the delay of the finalized audit and 
explaining that Staff is not at fault. 

Chairwoman Kelley asked if Eide Bailly also conducted the audit for the Southern 
Nevada Health District (SNHD). 

Mr. Hansen answered that he was not involved in the SNHD audit and therefore 
could not speak to it specifically, but that for the Commission, Eide Bailly relies on 
the State audit that is usually completed at the same time as the Commission audit, 
but due to this year's delay, Eide Bailly has not been able to obtain that data. 

Subcommittee Chairwoman Kirkpatrick reiterated the need for Eide Bailly to 
provide Staff with a written statement explaining that Staff is not at fault for a late 
audit report. 

Mr. Hansen stated that a statement could be provided to Staff. 

Tamara Miramontes, auditor from Eide Bailly, explained that because the 
Commission is a component of the State of Nevada, the agency does not have a 
separate breakout on the allocation schedule Issued by PERS, and the 
Commission's data is included in that of the entire state. The State Controller's 
Office, upon receipt of the schedule Issued by PERS, then allocates the data 
according to individual agency. 

Vice Chairwoman Kirkpatrick again reiterated the need for Eide Bailly to provide 
Staff with a letter regarding this Issue. 
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Ms. Miramontes stated that Eide Bailly would provide Staff with a letter. 

Subcommittee Chairwoman Kirkpatrick stated that she did not see the need for 
another meeting of the Subcommittee if the draft audit required only the PERS 
data for completion. 

Subcommittee Chairwoman Kirkpatrick moved for approval of the 
recommendation that once the pertinent data from PERS was received, Staff 
would bring the audit before the full Commission with the addendum 
provided by Eide Bailly explaining the delay of the final draft. The motion 
was seconded by Commissioner Stewart and approved by a unanimous 
vote. 

E. Comments from the public. (No action may be taken on a matter raised 
under this Item of the agenda until the matter Itself has been speclflcally 
lncludod on an agenda as an Item upon which action may be taken) 

Subcommittee Chairwoman Kelley asked if there were any comments or questions 
from the public. There were none. 

Comments and questions from the Commission members. 

Subcommittee Chairwoman Kelley asked if there were any other comments or 
questions from the Commission members. 

Chairwoman Kelley thanked Staff. 

Selection of next possible meeting date. 

The next meeting date is to be determined. 

Adjournment. 

The meeting was adjourned at 3:14 p.m. 

Eric Witkoskl, Executive Director 
APPROVED: 

Kara J, Kelley, Subcommittee Chairwoman 
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ATTACl1MENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Statement of Net Position 

)une 30, W20 

Governmcn11I Business-type 
Activities Actlvltlos Tot~I 

Asscu 

Curronl Assoll 
Cnh and cuh equlv;ilunll, unroslrlctud s 14,192,971 s 4,241,760 $ 18,434,731 
Rocelvijblos 

Accounts IS,SGO 1,921,600 1,937,160 
Accrvcd !nlcrost 7~,466 32,511 111,977 

lnlornal b1lan":1 227,765 (227,765) 
Prepaid ltoms 16,547 494,454 511,001 
Current portion of prcp~ld power 11686,284 1,616,_28<1_ 

Total current assets 14,532,309 8,148,844 22,611,153 
Noncur,ent Asseu 

Rutrlcted cash and cash equivalents 2,602,818 2,602,818 
Capital assets being depreciated, not of a"umul~tod doprcclatlon 10,690 45,162,(141 45,112,737 
Prepaid power, net or current portion 2318G31942 23,8631942 

Tot~! n0ncurrcnt ~$$NI 10,600 711628.807 71.619,497 
Total assets 14,542,999 79,777,6S1 94,320,650 

Deferrnd Outflows of Resources 
Deferred amounts related to OPEil 121,517 1!1,511 
Deferred amounts relatl!d to pensions 110831150 1,on11so 

To13I dofetrod outflows of re1ourc..,1 1I204IGG7 1,2041667 

Total useu and duforrud outflow~ of rc,ourcos i IS,747IGGG i 19i711,&s1 i !iSIs2sI31, 

Li;bllltlU 

Curran\ Llabllltlcs 
Accounts poyablc $ 198,88R $ 2,785,214 $ 2,984,102 
Accrued payroll 181,463 IU,463 
Uncnrncd rovonuo S8,763 a, 1s4,!l8a 3,213,751 
Payable io cunomeri 1,72G,G83 1,72G,Gii3 
Customer collatcrol and other deposits 1,196,235 1,196,235 
Currenl port ion of accrued compon1ntod ~b\qnc~\ 328,066 3l8,966 
Current ponlon ol bonds payable 155.000 ?SS,000 
Accrued lnIoro11 2601564 260,564 

ro1aI current IIabI1it1os 768,080 9,878,684 1016461764 
Noncur1cnl llobllllies 

Bondi p1yablc, not of currnnt portion 25,847,llA 25,847,118 
Unoarnod rovenuo, Ml of current portion 42,247,Hl 42,247,lll 
Acc,uod compcnsot od absencei, not of current portion 189,443 189,443 
Nol OPCB l11blllly 2,267,165 2,267,165 
Net pension llabllily Si)8G1027 519861027 

Totil noncurrol'I llabilltloi 81'1!1,635 68,094,449 76,517,084 
Ocfoned lnllow1 of Resource, 

Oolorrud 1mount1 related lo OPEil IJ7,7ll 117,733 
Oeforrud 1mounh related to ponJlons SGSIG80 S6S1680 

Tntal rf~f"""" lnflnwi nf re,ourr,e5 70J1a IJ 70J14ll 

Total liabllltlo11nd dolerrod Inflows of l<!>OUl(C> 9,914.128 7]197311U 871887,261 
Nol Pu1ll lun 

Nflt lnvallmont In CApilll Ustli 10,690 4S,IG1,047 45,111,737 
Rulrltl"d for rfl\OIICh and rflvolopmom 11,810,0SS 11,810,958 
Unro,111c1ad t!,988,1101 l4ll)~7,S791 t49114$1G39I 

Total ne t po,lllon sIsuIsJs i.804,5I8 71618,056 

loul lliblllllc,, dclorted lnllow, of ru,ourcv, or;d not P.O•lllon s ISI747I6G6 s 7'>/771651 1 9SI~1SIl l1 

See Notes to Flnilncl.i l Statements 14 



ATTACMMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Statement or Activities 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Program Net (Expenses) llcvonue ~nd 
Revenues ChanRes In Net Position 

Charses for Governmental Business-type 
Expenses Services Actlvlthls Activities Total 

Functlons/Proarams 

Govcrnmontal Actlvitloi 
General government $ US3,0S3 $ 2,912,999 $ 59,946 $ $ S9,946 
Research ;and development 42S,5S6 720,38S 294,829 294,829 

3,278,609 3,633,384 3$4,775 3S4,775 
Business-type Activities 

Power marketing 28,095,112 28,060,731 (34,381) (34,381) 
Power delivery 16,1011489 16,047,305 !S4,184! jS41184! 

44,196,601 44,108,036 !88,SGS! 1as1s6sl 

Total $ 47,475,210 s 47,741,420 354,775 (88,565! 266,210 

General Revenues 
Investment Income 382,851 139,Slli 522,367 
Gain on disposition of 

property and oqulpmont 2,806 2,806 
Mlscellaneous 67138S 67,385 

453,042 139,516 592,558 

Change In net position 807,817 S0,951 858,768 

Net position, beginning 5,025,721 li1S31567 6,779,288 

Ncl position, ending $ S,833,538 $ 1,804,S18 $ 7,618,056 

Stle Notes to Flnanclal Sutements 15 



ATI'ACHMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Balance Sheet 

Governmental Funds 
June 30, 2020 

Research and 
Development Totol 

Special Governmental 
General Fund Revenue Fund Funds 

Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 
Recolvables 

2,389,299 s 11,803,672 

Accounts 15,S60 
Accrued Interest 13,417 66,049 

Prepaid Items 16,S47 
Due from Other Funds 227_,765 

Total assets $ 2,662,588 $ 11,869,721 

Llabllitlos and Fund Balances 

Llabllltles 
Accounts P~vablc $ 198,888 $ 
Accrued payroll 181,463 
Unearned rcvonuc .58,763 

'Total llabilltles 380,3S1 S8c'63 
Fund Balances 

Nonspendable • prepaid Items 16,547 
Rcstrlctod for research nncl development 11,810,958 
Unassigned 2,265,690 

Toti'll lund balonco5 2,282il37 11,8101958 

Total liabllitios and fund balances s 2,662,588 s 11,869,721 

Rcconclllntlon of iho 83lonco Sheet of tho Governmental Funds to the Statement of Not POSICiOn 

Amounts reported for governmental activities In t~e statement of net position nro dillcfent bcc~uso 
long-term llobllltles thot arc not duo and pavoblc In the current 
period are not reported In the funds. 

Accrued compensated absoncos 
Net OPEB llablllty 
Not punslon llabllltv 

Deferred outflows and Inflows of resources related to pensions ond 
OPED arc appllcoblc lo Muro periods ,1nd, therefore, arc not 
reported In the funds. 

Deferred Inflows ol resources related to OPEB 
Deferred Inflows of resources rel~lcd to penslom 
Delemid oulllows of resources rela ted to OPED 
Ooforred oulftows of resources rol~tcd to poM!ons 

Capital outlays to purchase 01 build opltal anuu aro fOportod In 
tho aovornmont.il lunds as oMpondlturos. For governmental 
activities, thcic coi.ts aro opltall1od In tho Jt,Homunt of net position 
3nd duf)rutldlcd ovor their osllmated uiclul live!., 

Net position of 1ovornmontal actlvll lcs 

See Note~ to Flnrinclal Statementl 

s (S 18,4091 
(2,267,165) 
!S,986,0271 

(137,733) 
(S6S,680) 
121,Sl7 

1,083,150 

$ 14,192,971 

15,560 
79,466 
lG,547 

221i76s 

$ 14,532,309 

s 198,888 
181,463 

SB,763 

439,114 

16,547 
11,810,9S8 

2.265,690 

14,093,19S 

(8, 771,6011 

S0l,25~ 

10,690 

S 5,833,S38 
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ATTACHMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances 

Governmental Funds 
Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Research and 
Dcvclopmont 

Special 
General Fund Revenue Fund 

Revenues 

Charges for services $ 2,912,999 $ 
Investment Income 66,435 316,416 
Multl•spcclos surcharge 720,385 
Miscellaneous 67,385 

Total revenues 3,046,819 1,036,801 

EKpcndlturcs 

Current 
Gunur~I administration S,683,653 
less salaries and overhead recovered by allocation 12,985,122) 

Nut gcnural administration expenditures 2,698,531 

Mult1-speeIes ossessmcnt 42S,SSG 
Water purthaus 13,258 

Total expenditures 2,711,789 42S1SSG 

Other financing sources 

Proccl!d from thl! sale of asset 2,806 

Exccu {dtflcloncvl of rovonuos over (under) 
u~ndltures and change In fund balances 337.836 611,245 

Fund bijlanccs, bcslnnlna 1,944,401 11,199,713 

Fund balances, ending $ 212s2,237 $ 111810,958 

Reconciliation or the Stn1emcnt or Revenues, Expcndlturos and Chanecs In Fund Balaneos of Govcrnment31 
Funds 10 thil St.ltcmcnt of Activities 

Amounts reported for govcl't'lmcntol ~ctlvltlcs ifl tho statem(!nt of activities are dlffcrcn1 bceau1c 

Chan8c In fund balances, go11crnmentol fund, 

Gcvurnmontal funds report capital outlays as expenditure~- However, 
In tho statement of activities tho cost of thoio liisc:tl Is allocat11d 
over their ostlm3tod u1alul lives and reported as. depreciation 
o•pcnsc, This Is the amount by which dcprnclatlon expeMc wh grvatcr 
than capita I outlays In the cum:nt period, 

Some e•pcnscs reported In the stat~ment of nctlvlties do liOl require 
tho use of current l lnanclJI ro,ourcos 3nd, chcrcforo, arc not 
r11port11d ~I expenditures In Aovcrnmontal funds, 

ChanRO In ;iccrued compensnled 1bsences 
Chongt> In net OPC8 llgblll1y ~f\d related deferred 

outilowi and lnllow1 of ro~ourcu 
Change! In net pcmlon lloblllty ond rclJtcd dcf;:rml 

outflows and lnllow1 of ro~ourco1 

CtlJll8 C hi net po,11I011 ci eovcrnmcnta l ocllvltlc1 

See Notes to Fln.incI.-,1 Stiltem11ntl 

(60,301) 

14,486 

(119,855} 

Total 
Government~! 

Funds 

s 2,922,999 
362,851 
720,385 

67,385 

4,063,620 

S,683,653 
12198S1122! 

2,698,531 

!l2S,SS6 
13,258 

3,137,345 

i,soc; 

!14!1,081 

13,14'!.il14 

s 14,093,195 

s 949,081 

(5,594) 

(I JS,670) 

807,817 
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ATTACMMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
StatomQnt of Revenues, Experiditvres and Changes In Fund Balance Budget and Actual 

General Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Varlan i:e 
BudRCi with 

orlslMI ~lnal Actual Fino! Budget 
Revenues 

Power :idmlnlstratfv(l charge $ 2,363,229 $ 2,363,229 $ 1,S89,8S4 s ('773,375) 
W~\cr chorgcs 2,205,893 2,205,893 1,323,145 (882,748) 
Investment-income 80,202 80,202 66,435 (13,767) 
Mlicellaneou$ 59,347 59 347 67,385 8,038 

Total revenues 4,708,671 4,708,671 3,046,819 (1 ,661,852! 

Expenditures 

Curront 
Gcncrnl government 

PersoMel services S,306,863 S/!06,863 4,309,103 997,760 
Trnvel 

Out-of-state 56,889 56,889 36,289 20,600 
In-state 9,485 9,485 2,S18 6,967 

Operating 
Rcnt and lnsuranco 146,091 146,091 147,679 (1,588) 
Dues and registration lees 11,215 71,215 7S,082 (3,867) 
Contractual set11ices 759,~07 759,207 140,385 618,822 
Other 261, 80 263,280 274,023 (10,743) 

LC831 609,~44 609,844 609,465 379 
Equipment, furniture and software 159,472 1S9,472 89,109 70,363 
Water purchases 13,255 14 155 13,258 897 

Total expenditures 7,394,201 7,396,S0l S,696,911 1,699,590 

Lois salaries and overhead 
rcc0v!!red by allocation 12, 12~,s 111 !2,725,5771 !2,98S, 1221 2S9,54S 

Net expenditures 416681624 4,670,924 2,711,789 11959113S 

Other flnonelr,11 SOUICCS 

Proceeds from sale of asset 2,806 2,806 

Excess (deficiency) of rcvcnuc1 
ovl!r (under) expenditures 
nnd change In fund balance 40,047 37,747 337,836 300,089 

Fund balance, beginning 116921S 71 1,932,745 1,944,401 111656 

Fund balance, ending s 1
1 
?32

1
618 i 11970,492 s 2,2821237 s 31 1

1
74S 

Sr.e Not es to FlrH1nclol Statements 18 



ATTACt1MENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balance Budget and Actual 

Research and Development Specl;il Revenue Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Variance 
81,1dget with 

Orlalnal Final Actual Final 8udBct 
Revenues 

Investment Income $ 185,520 $ 218,447 $ 316,416 $ 97,969 
Multi•species surcharge 749,016 749,016 720,385 (28,631) 

Total revenues 934,536 967,463 1,036,801 69,338 

E><pendlturcs 

Multi-species assessment 9781948 978,948 425,556 SS3,392 

Net e><pendltures 978,948 978,948 425,556 553,392 

E><cess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) Cl<penditures 
and t hilnge in fund balance (44,412) (11,485) 611,245 622,730 

Fund balance, beginning 10,557,285 11,184,879 11,199,713 14,834 

Fund balance, endlns $ 10,512,873 $ 11,173,394 $ 11,810,958 $ 637,S64 

See Notes to Fln.inclal Statements 19 



ATTACHMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Statement of Net Position 

Proprietary Funds 
June 30, 2020 

13uslnoss•typo Activities 

Power 
Enterrise Funds 

ower 
Marketin& Oellve~ Tot~ls 

Assets 

Current Auets 
Ca1h ond cosh equivalents, unrestricted $ 2,669,070 s 1,572,690 s 4,24l,760 
Receivables 

Accounts 886,626 1,034,974 1,92l,600 
Accrued Interest 24,S32 7,979 32,S11 

Prepaid Items 444,647 49,807 494,454 
Current portion of prepaid power 1,686,284 1,686,284 

Total current assets 5,711,159 2,66S,4S0 8,376,609 

Noncurrent Assets 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 2,281,098 32 1,720 2,602,818 
Capital assets 

Power transmission system, ncl 6,887,139 38,064,210 44,9S1,349 
Automobiles and equipment, net 210,698 210,698 

Prepaid power, nel of current portion 23,8G3,9tl2 231863,942 

Total non c\Jrrent onets 33,032,179 38,596,628 71,628,807 

Total assl!ts s 38,743,338 $ 41,262,078 s 80,005,416 

liabllltillS 

Current Llabllltl!!s 
Accounts payable $ 1,809,537 s 975,677 s 2,785,214 
Unearned revenue 1,429,554 1,725,434 3,154.988 
Payable to customers 60,971 1,665,712 1,?lG,683 
Customer collaterol and other deposits 1,168,575 27,660 1,196,235 
Current portion of bonds poyoble 755,000 755,000 
Oue 10 other funds 17,534 210,23l U7,76S 
Accrued Interest 260,564 260,!:,64 

Tot31 current ll~billtlcs S,501,735 4,604,714 10,106,449 

Noncurrenl lloblll tlcs 
Bonds payable, net of curront portion iS.847.118 25,847,118 
unearned rovcnuo s1asa114s 361388,!:.83 42,247,331 

To tal noncurrcnt il.ibll ltlos 31,705,866 36,388,S83 68,094,449 

Total llabllltlcs 37,207,601 40,9911297 781200,898 

Net Po~lllon 
Nei lnvostmcnt In capital assl!h 6,887,139 38,274,908 45, 162,047 
Unrestr icted jS135 l 1402j (381006, 1271 j4313S71S29j 

Total net position 1,535,737 268,781 1,804,518 

Tot;il llabll! tles ond net position $ 38,743,338 s 41,262,078 s 80,005,4\G 

See Notes to fin.incl/II Statement~ 20 



ATTACHMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes In Net Position 

Proprletory Funds 
Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Business-type Activities 
Enterprise Funds 

Power Power 
Marketlne Dcllvc!J'. Totals 

Operntlng Revenues 
Power sales $ 28,060,731 $ 16,047,305 $ 44,108,036 

Oporntlns E)(penses 
Powor purchases 25,817,589 11,173,479 36,991,068 
Prepaid power advances 1,684,284 1,684,284 
Depreciation 317,867 1,729,815 2,047,682 
General administration 275,372 3,198,195 3,473,567 

Total operating expenses 28,095,112 16,101,489 44,196,601 

Operating income (loss) (34,381) (54,184) (88,565) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 
Investment Income 93,904 45,612 1391S16 

Change In Net Position 59,S23 (8,572) 50,9S1 

Net Position, Beginning 1,476,211l 277,353 1,753,S67 

Net Position, Ending $ 1,S35,737 $ 268,781 $ 118041S18 

See Note5 to Flnonctal Statcmirnts 21 



ATTACMMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Funds 
Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Business-type Activities 

Power 
Entererlse Funds 

Power 
MarketlnS OellVer:z'. Totals 

Cash Flows from Operntina Activities 
CDsh received from customers $ 27,321,652 $ 14,371,403 $ 41,693,055 
Cash paid for goods and scrvicos !26,090,6091 114,370,378) (40,460,987! 

Net cHh provided (used) by oporailng activities 1,231,043 1102s 1,232,068 

Cash Flows from Nonc(lpltal Fln~nclng Activities 
Ca1h used for debt service; 

Principal (740,000) (740,000) 
Interest (1,049,8401 !1,049,8401 

Net cash provided (used) by noncopital 
financing octlvltlos (1, 789,8401 (1,789,840! 

Cash Flows from lnveJtlng Activities 
A(qulsltlon of c~plta! :isscts (77,964) (77,964) 
Proceeds received on snlc of C(ll)ltal assets 
investment Income received 113,4S2 S1.622 165,074 

Net c;ish provided (used )by invcstln~ activitfos 113,4S2 126,342) 87,110 

Net change In cosh ond cosh equivalents 
(restricted and unrostrlctcdl (445,345) (25,317) (470,662) 

Cosh and Cash Equl11olents, 8cglnn!ng 5,395,513 1,919,727 7,3JS,240 

Cash 31\d C:ish Equlv3ionts, Ending $ 4,950,168 $ 1,894,410 $ 6,844,578 

ReCOl'IClllatlon or Operating l'OSS to Not ,~sh 
Provided by Oporotlng Actlvltlos 
Operating loss $ (34,381) $ (54,184) s (88,565) 
Depreciation 317,867 1,729,815 t047.682 
Gain on sale of capital assets 
Amortization of prepaid power 1,809,943 1,809,943 
Amortization of unearned revenue • power tronsmlnlon (283,4881 (1,675,628) (1 ,959,116) 
Amortization of bond premiums and dlicounu S,99S S,99S 
(Increase) decrease In operating assets 

Accounh receivable (313,3391 (270,009) (563,348) 
f'ropild Items 39,428 (3,338) 36.090 

lncro.ise (decrease) In operating llabllltlcs 
Accounts pavablc (50,0721 32,611 (17,461) 
Unearned revenue (59,7261 (45,129) (104,BSS) 
f'avnblc to customNs (284,2331 380,387 96,154 
Customer col lateral and other deposits 13,84S (65,523) 8,322 
Due to other funds 12,996 (27,977) (14,981) 
Accrued Interest 13,792! !3,7921 

Net cosh provldcd (ulcd) bv operatlne activities s 1,23 1,043 s 1,025 s 1,232,068 

See Notes to Financial St.it ements u 



Note 1 • Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Reporting Entity 

ATTACMMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year l;nded June 30, 2020 

The Colorado River Commission of Nevada (the Commission) Is responsible for mnnaslng the State of Nevada's 
interest$ in the water and power resources avolloble from tho Colorado River. 

Seven commissioners have broad statutory authority to govern the Commission, which const itutes the reporting 
entity. The Commission, as a componont unit of the State of Nevada (Nevada or the Stote), Is also an integral 
part or that reporting entity, There are no other entitles for which the Commission is financially accountable, 
thus requlrlns them to be reported as component units of the Commission, 

Al l of the Commission's cash receipts and disbursements are processed and recorded by tho State's Controller. 
Budgetary and cash controls are imposed by the State Controller on the Commission's general and speclol 
revenue funds, while other State-Imposed cash control requirements apply to the Commission's enterprise 
funds. The Commission maintains its own revenue, eKponse and general journals and a general ledger, 

llaal, of PrHentatlon, M11011.1remtnl Focv,, and Basis of Accou11lin11 

lla1l1 of PrHentallon 

The financial statements have been prepared In conformity with accounting principles generally accepted In the 
United States (GAAPI applicable to gov9rnment units as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASP), principally GASP Statement No, 34, 8asfc Ffnancla/ Statements - and Management's Discussion 
and Analysis - for State and Local Govrunments, as amended, along with relotcd pronouncem<?nts. The GASB Is 
the accepted standard-settins body for establishing govcrnmontol occountlng and rlnancial reporting prlnclplo11. 
The Commission Is not subject to regulation by federal or state utility regulatory bodies such as the Federal 
En!!rgy Regulatory Commission or the Nevada Public UtllltlC!s Commission. 

Th!! prnparation of fin,mcial statemenis In occordonce with GAAP requires the use of estimates and ,mumptlons 
that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures, some of which may require revisions In future periods. 
Accordingly, actual results could differ from these estimates and assumptions. 

Government•wlde f inancial statements: The statement of 1101 position :ind the statement of activities display 
lnforrn.itlon 0111111 or the activities or the Commission. Elimlnatlons have been made where appropriate to 
mlnlmlzo the double counting of Internal activities. Thcsci statements dist inguish between the Commission's 
r,overnmentol and bus/ntm•type octlvltlos. Governmental activities generally ore financed through lntl:!r• 
govornmontal revenues and other exchange transoc:tlon1. Business-typo activities ;,re financed prlmorlly by fees 
charsed to e><ternol parties. 

The statement of octlvltles presents a comp3rlson between direct expenses ond program revonuos, Direct 
expenses aro those ihol are speciflcallv assoclotod with a program or function and, therefore, are cleorly 
ldcntlflable 10 that particular program or function. Cert.-ln Indirect costs are Included In the program expense 
reportlld lor lndlvldu:il functions and octl11ltles. ProRram revenues consist or ch:1r11es paid by the recipients of 
services offered by the proRroms. Revenues that arl! not classified u program revenues ore presented as 
gonl.'ral revenues, 
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ATTACHMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Fvnd finoncio/ stotements: The fund financial statements provide Information about the Comml$slon's funds. 
Separate statements for each fund category - governmentul <1nd proprietary - arc presented. The emphas s of 
fund fini!ntial $tatements i$ on mojor governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. 
Any remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated c1 nd reported as non-major funds. 

Proprietary fund operotlns revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange tronsactlons associated 
with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions arc those In which each party receives and gives up 
essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues of proprie tary funds Include Investment earnings and revl!nues 
resulting from ancillc1ry ac;tlvltles, 

The Commission reports the following major governmental funds: 

General fund - The general fund Is the Commission's primary operotlhg fund. It accounts for all financial 
resources of tho gcnerol government, 0)(tept those required to be accounted for In another fund. 

Research and Development fund - This fund Is usC!d to account for the Lower Colorado River Multl-Spocios 
Conservation Program (LCRMSCP or MSCP), a flfty-voar prosrorn that provides for Endangered Species Act (ESA) 
compllonce. The program Is administered by the United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) and the Fish and 
Wildlife Service. Program costs are paid by the USBR and the States of Novada, California c1nd Ariiona. Nevada's 
share of Program funding Is paid partially by the SouthC!m Nevada Water Authority (paid directly to the USSR), 
and partlal lv by the Commission's hydropower customers. The fund account~ for the collectlc:m .ind remittance 
of the Hvdropower customers' portion of thfl program, In addition, certain program reserves ore molntalnod In 
thf! fund for future MSCP needs. These reserves are contractually committed to the MSCP program. 

Additionally, the Commission reports the following major enterprise funds: 

Power marketing enterprise fvnd, This fund operates as n public utility and accounts for the activities of 
providing electrical power generated at a fad oral facility to Its customers. 

Power def/very enterprise Jund. This fund Is used to account for the construction .tnd operation of power 
tfansmlsslon equipment for the Southern Nevadi! Water Authority (SNWA). 

Mea■urement Focu, and Ba■ I, of Accovnllng 

Gavernment ,wlde and proprietary fund f lnonc/ol statements. The govemment-wlde and proprietary fund 
fln;,ncl.il statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement locus nnd the accrual ba~ls of 
accounting. Revenues ore recorded when oarnod, and expenses are recorded at the time liabllltles arc Incurred, 
rf!g11rdless of the timing of related cash flows. For the year ended June 30, 2020, thore were no non-exchange 
transactions (those for which the Commission glvos, or rl!celves, value without direct Iv receiving, or giving, equal 
value In exchange) reported In the accompanying financial statements. 
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A'T'l'ACl1MENTA 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Notes to Financ;ial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Governmental fund J/nancla/ statl!ments. Governmental funds are reported using the current flnanclal resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, prlnclpally charges for services and 
Investment Income, aro susc@ptlbl(l to accrual and, therefore, recognized when measurable and available. 
Revenues are considered to be available If they are collected within sixty days after year end. Expenditures 
gcncrolly arc recorded when tho related liability is Incurred, except for principal and interest on general lone• 
term debt, claims and judgments, pension liabilities, and compensated absences, which are recognized as 
expenditures only when payment Is due. Proc1rnds of gen@ral long-term debt and acquisitions under capital 
leases are reported as other financing SO\!rces. 

It is the Commission's policy to use restricted resources first wtien both restricted and unrestricted (unassigned) 
resources are available for use, and then unrestricted (unassigned) resources as needed, 

Autll1 LlabllitiH, and Equity 

Cash Equlvaltnh 

The Commission's restricted and unrestricted cash Is deposited with the Stote Troasurnr (the! Treasurer) in a 
fund slmllor to an external Investment pool (Notes 3 and 4), Bec.iuse the amounts deposited with the Treasurer 
are sufficiently liquid to permit withdrawals In the form or cash at any time without prior notice or penalty, they 
ore deemed to be cash oquivalents. 

State statutes outhorlzc tho Treasurer to Invest tho Commission's deposits in certain obligations of the United 
States of America, or its agencies or instrumentalities, and of state and local governments, as wl!II as other 
flnonclal Instruments specified In Section 35S.170 of Nova do Revised statutes (NRS). The Treasurer Is also 
permitted by statute to lend its sec;uritle$ to broker-dealers and other entitles with o simultaneous agreement to 
return the collateral for tho some sccurltlos In the future. The Commission had no outstc1nding securities !ending 
transactions as of June 30, 2020. 

Deposit values reflect unrealized gain~ ,md losses on invested funds .is reported by the Trcosurcr. 

R.ecelvablH and PayablH 

All outstanding balances between funds nre reported as "due to/from other fonds" . 

Since sales ore mode only to cunomors who arn known to have acceptable credit ,ind no bad debts have ever 
beon sustained, an allowi!nce for uncollectible accounts Is not considered to be necessary. 

Prepaid Powe, 

The CQmmlsslon hn~ participated with the State In fundin8 the Improvement and renovation ("uprating") of the 
electrical power gcnl!ratlon plant and visitors' center at Hoover Dam, which supplies tho m11Jorlty of the power 
sold throuah the power marketing fund. These costs are to be reimbursed in the form of power consumption 
and charscd to c•pcnsc over the estimated useful life of 30 years. 
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Restricted Cuh and Cash Equivalents 

ATTACHMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

The various resources that are limited as to use by bond covenants for debt service, operation and maintenance 
(O&M), and capital Improvement and construction (acquisition) arc classified as restricted cash and cash 
cqulvalonts. Net position Is restricted to the e)(tent restricted assets exceed related llabllltles and controc-tually 
with regilrd to c:ertaln operations and maintenance costs. 

Capital Au ets 

Purchnsed or constructed capital assets are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capitol assets 
are reported at acquisition value. The capitalization threshold Is $5,000. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitaliied as projects are constructed, Interest Incurred 
during the construction phase of copltal assets of business-typo activities, if any, is included as part of the 
capitalized value of the assets constructed. 

Copltal assets of the Commission am depreciated using the straight-line method over their useful lives currently 
estimated as follows: 

Governmental Activities 
ornce equipment 
Office furniture and fixtures 
Automobiles 

eusioess·tvee Activities 
Power transmission systems 
Otnco equipment 
Autornobiles 

:w.u 
s 
5 

4 - 6 

:{oars 
10 - 50 

s 
4- 6 

Estimated useful lives ore determined by the State and the Commission has no authority to alter the estimated 
useful lives prescribed by the State. 

Compen1oted Abaenc11 

It Is the Commlnlon's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacotlon and sick pay 
benefits, All vocation and sick pay Is accrued when Incurred In the government-wide and proprietary fund 
flnancla l statements, A llabllitv for these amounts 15 reported In governmentol funds only If they have matured, 
for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements. 

Multlple-fmploye, Coit-Sharing Defined len,flt Pen,lon Plan 

The Commission uses tho samC! basis used In the Public Employees' Retirement System of Nevada's (PERS) 
Comprehen5lve Annua l Financial Report for reporting IU proportionate share of tho PERS colloctl11e net pension 
liability, deferred outflows and Inflows of rnsourcos related to p1mslon1, i!nd p1:nslon e~pense, Including 
lnform;itlon reliltecl to PERS fiduciary net position. Benefit payments (Including refunds of cmployC!C! 
contributions) arc rncognlrcd by PE RS whon duo and payablo In accordancl! with the bcn<:flt IN ms. PERS 
lnvl!~tmenh tire r<:port<:d i!I fi!lr value. 
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Deferred Inflows and Outflaws of Rtsourcts 

ATTACMMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Notes to J:lnanclal Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to future 
periods; and therefore, will not be recognized as on outflow of resources (expense/ei<pendlture) until then. The 
government-wide statement of net position reports 1) the changes In proportion and differences batween 
actual contributions and proportionate share of contributions related to pensions, which will be amortized over 
tho average oi<pected remaining service life of all employees that are provided with pension benoflts, 2) the net 
difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments, which are deferred and 
amortized over five years, and 3) contributions for pensions and OPEB made subsequent to tho measurement 
date, which will be recognized In the subsequent year. 

Deferred Inflows of resources represent an acquisit ion of net position that applies to a future periods(s) and so 
will not be rocognlred as an Inflow of r<!sources (revenue) until that time. The government•wlde statement of 
net position reports 1) the differences between expected and actuol exporlcnce and changes of a$sumptions, 
which will be amortized over tho avorag<! «:!xp<!cted remainin8 $ervice life of all employees that arc provided with 
pension benefits, 2) the net difference between projected and actual earnings on investments, which will be 
omortlzcd over five years, and 3) changes In assumptions or other inputs to the total OPEB liability which are 
deferred and amortized over the average expected remaining service life of all employei)s that are provided with 
health benefits. 

Unearned Revenue 

Unearned revenue represents advanced funding to the Commission from certain customers for tho construction 
of electric power facilities to provide power for the customer's operations. These facllltles are dedicated to the 
exclusive use of those customers and arc the only e,<isting method of delivery of electrical resources for their 
operatlol'ls. Recovery of the cost of the facllltles Is a component of tho cost of power resources provided and Is 
being recognized over tho life of the assets as the assets are consumed (depreciated). 

Long-ltrm Obligation, 

In the accompanying government-wide and proprietary fund flnonclol statements, long-term debt and other 
long•term obligations ore reported as llabllltles. Bond premiums and di5counls ore deferred and amortized over 
the life of the bonds using lhe straight-line method. Issuance costs arc expensed as Incurred. 

Funci Equity or N•I Po■ itlon 

In the fund financial statoments, govornmt:!ntal lunds report five classifications of fund balance. Nonspcndablc 
are amounts that are not In spendable form or arc lesally or contractually roqulrod to bC! maintained lnlact. 
Restric ted Is tho result ol constraints placed on i,ssets thill are externally lrnposed by creditors or Imposed by 
law through c0Mti1utional provlslom or enabling legislation. Commlttiid ore amoui'lts set ailde by formal action 
of the Commission's members. Formol Commission action is also required to modify or rescind an established 
commitment. Assigned is the result of constraints on amounts Imposed by tho sovornmont's Intent 10 be used 
for specific purposes, but arc neither rostrlct(!d nor committed. 



ATTACHMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Notes to Flnanclnl Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

In the government-wide statements, equity Is classified as net position and dlsplnyed In the following three 
components: 

Net Investments In Capital Assets· This Is the component of net position that reports the difference between 
capital assets less both the accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balance or debt, excluding 
une)(pended proceeds, that Is directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those 
assets. 

ReH[lctcd • The component of net posit ion that reports the constraints placed on the use of assets by either 
external parties and/or ena bllng legislation. 

unrestricted • The difference between the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred 
Inflow~ of resources that Is not reported In Net Investment in Capital Assets or Restricted Net Position. 

Ct,a,.gt In Accounting Policy 

Tho Commission changed its ac,ountlng policy during the year with respect to how the State of Nevada 
Treasurer's Interest Is nccounted for In the Gencual Fund. In previous years, a portion of thB Interest was 
ollocatod from the General Fund to the other funds In a manner similar to the allocation of overhead 
e~penses. In the current year, management determined that this allocation to other funds Is unnecl!ssary 
since the other funds each receive their own allocatlon of Interest from the State of Nevada. This new 
methotl ls prefcrnble to the Commission as m nagement believes it more accurately roflects the Income 
attributable to each fund. The cumulative impact of this change In policy on net fund balance cannot be 
determined; therefore, tho policy change hos been applied prospectively. However, In the current year, th<! 
change In the General Fund balance was appro)(lmately $44,000 higher under tho new method than It would 
have been under the previous nllocatlon method. 

Note z • Stewardship, Compllar,ce, and Accountability 

ludgeta,y Information 

Biennial budgets arc adopted on a basis consistent with the accounting pollclo~ applied for financial reporting 
purposes by the Commission under GAAP except that encumbrances for goods and services not received by 
fiscal year end arc considered oxpcndltures of the current period solely for budgetary purposes. There were no 
oncumbrances outstanding Bl the beginning or end of tho yoor. Although budset5 are adopted on o blonnlJI 
basis, each yoor Is troatod ,oparatoly 11nd unexpended budget authorlrntlons lapse at oach yoar end. 

Prior to Soptombor 1 of each l!vl!n-nurnbcred year, the State's Olrector of Administration submits proposed 
op1m1tlng budgets to the Nevada Budget Olvl,fon coverlns tho biennium beginning the followlne July 1. Aller 
review of the budget& by tho Novada Budget Division between September 1 and November IS, hearings 
Involving th!! Commlnlon, the Olrector of Admlnlstrotlon and tho Governor are hi!ld between Novomber 1S and 
December 22, or c.1ch budect yoar. The biennium budgets are transmitted to the State Legislature no later than 
tho 10'~ day of the lcglslatlvc senior, held In odd-numbered ye.i rs and, tor adjourning, the Lcglslaturo onocts the 
budgets. 
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ATTACHMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Net expenditures of the general rund (gross expenditures less amounts ollocatcd to other funds) are controlled 
by budget categories (personnel serviccis, travcil in-state, travel out-of-state, operating expenses, and capita! 
outlay for the general fund; c1nd general and admlnlstrntlvc and Intergovernmental for the special revenue 
fund). 

Management of the Commission cannot amend any budget categories. However, the Oirector of Administration 
is authorirnd to approve requests for thanges in the budget involving transfers between el<penditure categories 
not exceeding 10% of orlglnally budgeted expenditures, or $30,000 in the aggregate, of the respective budget 
ca tegories. Any changes exceeding 10% or $30,000 require approval of tho State Legislature's Interim Finance 
Committee. 

8vdgota,y Information 

Followlng Is a brief summary of the covenants included In the bond resolutions of the enterpri se funds: 

The Commi$$lon Is required to charge purchasers of services and all users or the State facilities sufficient 
amounts to cover all operation and maintenance expenses (e1tc:ept depreciation), all debt service requirements, 
and any amounts required to be deposited In reserve accounts, 

Mo11tbly transfers for debt service - A debt service actount Is required to ensure payment of Interest and 
prlncipal when due. Transfers ore made each month from rnvenues to provide 1/6 of the next semlonnu.il 
Interest payment and 1/12 of the annual bond prlnclp!JI p1Jyme11t. 

Clp,scs of usgrs - The power marketing fund serves two classes of users, retoll utlllty cus tom<?rs and industrial 
customers. The power dellvery fund serves the SNWA and its customers. 

2!hi! - Other requirements of the bond covenants include maintaining bond funds In separate depository 
accounts with tho State Treasurer and ~n audit of the Commission's flnoncial statements by an independent 
cert ified public .iccountant. 

Durln8 the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the Commission complied with ,;111 requirements of the bond 
covenants. 



Note 3 - Cash Deposits 

ATl'ACHMENT A 

Color'ado River Commission of Nevada 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended Juno 30, 2020 

At June 30, 2020, the Commission's carrying amount of restricted and unrestricted cash and cash equlva lents 
was $21,037,549. These deposits with the Treasurer are not catcaorluid as to credit risk, but are fully Insured by 
the FDIC or collaternllzod by tho State's financial institutions. Securities used as such collntcral must total 102 
percent of the deposits with each financial Institution. 

Note 4 • Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equlvalonts restricted at June 30, 2020, by bond covenants or contrnctual agreements are 
summarized as follows: 

Restricted for: 
Debt service $ 1,051,894 
Reserve for revenue lnsullici<incy 261,018 
Cash held by contractual agreement 1,289,906 

Total restricted $ 2,602,818 

Note 5 • Capital Assets 

Caplt.il ,met activity for the year ended Juno 30, 2020, was as follows: 

Beginning Endi"' 
Balonces Increase Decrease 8:ilanccs 

Governmental Activities 
Capital assets being depreciated 
OHlcc equipment $ 45,374 $ s $ 45,374 
Office furniture and fl><turcs 25,574 720 24,8511 
Automobiles 109,877 27 420 82,457 

Total capital assets being 
doprcclatod 180,825 28,140 152,685 

Leu accumulntod doprnclatlon 
Office equipment 45,374 45,374 
Office furniture and flxturl!s 2),574 720 24,854 
Automobiles 93,S93 5 594 27,420 71,767 

Total accumulated dopruclntlon 1611,54 1 5 594 28,140 141,99!', 

Capltal 3HCltS; not s 16,284 15,594! $ $ 10,690 
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ATTACHMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Notes to Flnanclal Stat!lments 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Beginning End Ina 
Balances Increase Decrease Balances 

Business-type Actlvitios 
Capital assets being depreciated 
Power tronsmlsslon system $ 88,278,263 $ s $ 88,278,263 
Office equipment 40,683 8,345 49,028 
Automobllcs 389,416 69,619 459,035 

Total capital assets beins 
depreciated 88,708,3Gi 77964 88,786,326 

Loss accumulated depreciation 
Power transmission system• 41,333,418 1,993,496 43,326,914 
Office equipment 32,783 13,059 45,842 
Automobiles 210,396 41,127 2S11523 

Total accumulated depreciation 41,576,597 2,0471682 43,624,279 

Capitol assets, not $ 47,131,765 $ (1,969,718) s i 45,162,047 

Depreciation expense was charged to functlons(programs as follows: 

Governmental Activities 
General government $ S,S94 

81,1siness:t~ee Activities 
Power marketing 317,867 
Power delivery 1,729,815 

$ 2,053,276 

Note 6 • Balances Due to/from Other Funds 

The composition of lnterfl.lnd balances, representing the net of short-term working capital advance! and 
repayments, as of June 30, 2020, was as follows: 

Funds D1.1e From Due To 

General $ $ 227,765 
Power marketing 17,534 
Power delivery 210,231 

$ 227,765 $ 
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ATTACHMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Note 7 - Unearned Revenue 

Tho Commission has rocognlted two primary liabilities for unearned revenue, one each In tho two enterprise 
funds. One liability Is recorded In Power Delivery Project Fund (PDP) and Is related to the electric power 
transformation 11nd transmission facilities serving the SNWA water treatment and distribution facilities at Lake 
Mead and in Henderson, Nevada, The other llablllty Is recorded In the Power Marketing Fund and is related to 
the Basic Step-down Yard facilities serving the Commission's retail Hydro power customers at the Industrial 
complex also in Henderson at a different locotlon. Those llabllltles represent customer advance funding for 
Commission owned and operated facilities to provide power for their operations. 

The PDP faellltles were constructed through the issuance of State of Nevada General Obllgatlon Bonds In 
September of 1997, September of 1999 and In Aprll of 200S. Tho facl lltles constructed are dedicated to the 
SNWA woter rela ted assets and arc being used to deliver electric power to the water operations. The cost of the 
facilities in the form or the bond payment obligation was a component of the charges ror power as the 
Commission delivered electrlclty to the SNWA. In 2011 and again in 2015 the SNWA prepaid the debt obligation 
and ultimately extingLJished the Commlislon's Bond llablllty. This extlnguishment const ituted a prepayment for 
a portion of the future cost of the electric resources related to faci lity use as power will be delivered In the 
future, The Commission rer;orded tlie prepayment and recognizes the revenue from the prepayment in concert 
with the depreciation of tho physical assets to match the revenue to the related depreciation costs as the 
facllltlu are used. 

Thi! Basic Step-Down yard facilities were r;ons ructeq beginning In 1999 through 2002 and were funded through 
,memnents on t'1c retail customers as the facl litlcs were built. Due to the number of customers lnvol1Jcd them 
was no need to enter into debt to fund th9 construction and the project wos completed through customer 
advance funding. The facllltles nnd o llnblllty In the form of unearned revenues were recorded and tho 
depreciation and revenue have been recognized over the life of tho assets from the beginning. 

$44,206,444 of the total unearned revenue balance at June 30, 2020 relates to construct ion and facilities and Is 
being amortized over various uscf\JI llvcs as determined during construction for Phase I, Phose II and River 
Mountains, and over an average life of the 39.S years for the Basic Stop.down Yard. The rl!rnalnlng balance !n 
unearned revenue primarily relates to amounts rocelved for services not yet rendered as of June 30, 2020. 

Future amortization of Unearned Rovonuc relating to construction and fiiclllties wlll be recognized as follows: 
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ATTACHMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Notes to Flnanclal Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 • 2030 
2031 - 2035 
2036 • 2040 
2041 • 2045 
2046 • 2050 
2051 • 20S2 

$ 

$ 

1,959,115 
1,959,115 
1,959,115 
1.959,115 
1,944,655 
9,716,292 
9,594,844 
8,523,417 
4,163,256 
2,202,233 

225,287 

44,206,444 

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Commission recognized total revenue of $1,959,115 related to the 
amortization of construction and facilities unearned revenue. 

Note 8 • Long•term Debt 

G_enqr_aJ Qbllgatloo Bonds 

Section 3 of Artlclo 9 of the Nevada State Constitution limits public debt to 2% of the State'5 assessed valuation, 
The legislature may authorize debt that Is not subject to the foregoing !Imitation to protect and preserve, or 
obtain tho benefits of, any of Its property or natural resources. The bonded debt incurred to fund the State's 
share of the cost of uprating electric11I generating facilities at Hoover Dam docs not affect the legal debt margin, 
because It was lncurrad to obtain tlw bMi!flts of the facility. 

On March 12, 2014, because of delays In determining a final allocation of shared costs, Interim bonds of 
$28.425,000 were lnued to fund thq Commission's expected share of the cost or construction of the visitor's 
center ot Hoover Dom, with e)(pcndlturns charged to prepaid power. In June 2014, the Commission sold the 
$29,475,000 Serles 2014E General Obligation Refunding bonds, proceeds from which were used to pay off the 
Interim bonds. These bonds maturn annually on October 1, 2015 through 2043, with Interest payable semi• 
annually on O~tober 1 and April 1 at annual rates of .SO% to 4.25%. 

Gcnor~I oblle.itlon bonds outstanding at year end are summarized as follows: 

Business-type Activities 
Maturity 

Dates 
Interest 

Rates 
Outstondin11 at 
June 30, 2020 

General obligation refunding series 2014& 2015 • 2043 o,so to 4.25% $ 26,740,000 
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for long-term debt consisting of general obllgatlon bonds are as 
follows: 

Total 
Y<?ar ending June 30, Prlncleal Interest Requirements 

2021 $ ?SS,000 $ 1,033,573 $ 1,788,573 
2012 770,000 1,014,880 1,784,880 
2023 800,000 993,670 1,793,670 
2024 815,000 970,653 1,785,653 
2025 835,000 945,058 1,780,058 
2026 - 2030 4,655,000 4,257,998 8,912,998 
2031 - 2035 5,610,000 3,265,808 8,S?S,808 
2036 • 2040 6,580,000 1,960,S2S 8,540,525 
2041 • 2044 ~.920,000 515,950 6,435,950 

$ 26,740,000 $ 14,958,115 $ 41,698,115 

Changes In Long•ltrm Obligations 

Ch.inges In long-term obligations during the year ended June 30, 2020, are sum ma rited below: 

Balance Balance 
Juli 01, 2019 Additions Reductions June 30, 2020 Current 

Governmental Activities 
Accrued compensated absences $ 458,109 s 246,616 

Business-type Activities 
$ 186,316 s 518,409 s 328,966 

General obligation bonds 27,480,000 740,000 lG,?40,000 755,000 
Unamortized bond discount {143,8771 !S199Sj ll3?J882) 

Total S 27,794,232 $ 246,616 $ 920,321 S27,120,S27 S t.083.966 

Accrued compensated absences are paid from the seneral fond. 

Note 9 - Risk Management 

The Commission Is exposed to various risks of loss related 10 torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
asst!ts; errors and omissions; and natural dlrnners. The Commission participates In the State risk pool and i5 
liable for payment of nominal deduct ibll! amounts. The State then becomes responsible for all losses In excess of 
the nominal Insurance deductible. 
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Note 10 - Commitments and Contln&encles 

litigation 

The Commission m11y from t ime to time be a party to various lltlgatlon matters. It Is management's opinion, 
based upon advlco from legal counsel, that the risk of financial losses to the Commission from such lltlgotlon, If 
any, will not h<1ve a material adverse effect on the Commission's future flnonclal position, results of operations 
or cash flows. Accordingly, no provision has been made for any such losses. 

Arbitrage Rebate Requirement 

The federal TaK Reform Act of 1986 Imposes a rebate requirement with rospoct to somo bonds Issued by the 
Commission. Under this act, an amount may bl'.! r(!quired to be rebated to the United States Treasury (called 
"arbitrage"), for interest on the bonds to qualify for eKcluslon from gross Income for federal Income tax 
purposes. Rebatable arbitrage is computQd as of (!ach Installment computation date. The arbitrase rebate 
calculation as of the most recent such date Indicates that no amount Is due. Futuro calculations might result In 
adjustments to this determination. 

Noto 11 - Multiple-Employer Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

The Commission's employees are covered by tho Public Employees' Retirement System of Nevada (PERS), which 
was estabHshl'.!d by the Nevada u~gislature in 1947, effective July 1, 1948, and Is governed by tho Public 
Employees Retirement Board (the PERS Board) whose seven mombors are appoint(!d by the governor, The 
Commission does not exercjse any control over PERS, 

PERS Is a cost-sh11rlng, multipl@•(!rnployer, de(ined benefit public employees' retirement syitem which Includes 
both regular and police/fire members. PERS Is administered to provide a reasonable base Income to qualified 
employees who have been employed by a public employer and whose earnings capacities have been removed 
or substantially Impaired by age or dlsablllty. 

Benefits. as required by NRS, are determined by the number of years of accredited service at time of retirement 
and tho mombor's highest average compensation in any 36 consecvtlve rnonth5 with speclol provision~ for 
members entering the system on or ofter January 1, 2010, and July 1, 201S . Benefit payments to which 
partlclponu or their beneficiaries may be entitled under the plan Include pension beneflt5, dlsoblllty benefits, 
and survivor benefits. 
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Monthly benefit allowances for members are computed as 2.5% of overage compensation for each accredited 
year of service prior to July 11 2001. For service earned on and after July 1, 2001, this multiplier Is 2.67% of 
average compensation. For members entering the system on or after January 1, 2010, there is a 2.5% multiplier, 
and for regular members entering the System on or after July 1, 2015, there is a 2.25% factor. PERS offers 
several alternatives to the unmodified service retirement allowance which, In general, allow the rl!tirl!d 
employee to accept a reduced service retirement allowance payable monthly during his or her lifetime and 
various optional monthly payments to a named beneficiary after his or her death. 

Post-retirement Increases are provided by authority of NRS 286.S75 • .S79, which for mombers ontl!ring the 
system before January 1, 2010, Is equal to the lessor of: 

1. 2% per year following tho third onnlvorsary of the commencement of benefits, 3% per year following the 
sixth :inniversary, 3,5% per year following the ninth anniversary, 4% per yeor following the twelfth 
anniversary ond S% per year following tho fourteenth 11nniversary, or 

2. The averase percentage Increase In tho Consumer Price! Index (or the PERS Board approved lndelC) for 
tho three prl!ceding years. 

In any event, a member's benefit mu$t be increased by the percentases In paragraph 1, above, If the bcnelit of a 
member has not been increased at o rate greoter thon or oqual to the aver:ige of the consumer Prh;e lnde1 (All 
Items) (or other PERS Board approved index) for the period between retirement and the date of Increase. 

For members onto ring the system on or after January 11 2010, the post-retirement Increases arc the same as 
above, elCcept that the increases do not elCceed 4% per year. 

Regular memberi 11re elislble for retirement at age 65 with 5 years of service, at age GO with 10 year$ of service, 
or at any ago with 30 yoars of service. Regular members entering the System on or after January 1, 20101 am 
eligible for retirement at qge 6S with 5 years of service, or age 62 with 10 years of service, or any age with 30 
years of service. Regular membors entering the System on or after July 1, 2015, are ellglblc for retirement at :ige 
65 with S yeilrs of service, or ilt age 62 with 10 years of service or al age 55 with 30 years of service or any age 
with 33 1/3 years of service. 

The normal colllns limitation on tho monthly benefit allowances Is 7S% of average compensation. However, a 
member who has an effective date of membership before July 1, 1985, Is entitled to a benefit of up to 90% of 
average compensation. 80th resular and police/fire members become fully vested as to benefits upon 
completion of five years of service. 

The authority of establishing and amending the obligation to make contributions and member contribution rates 
rests with NRS, Ncw hims, In agencies which did not elect the employer-pay contribution (EPC) plan prior to July 
l , 1983, have tho option of select Ing one of two altcrnotlvo contribution plans. Contributions are $hared equally 
by employer and employee In which omployoos can take a reduced s.ilary and have contributions made by the 
employer or c.in make contributions by a payroll deduction matched by tho omployor. 

Tho PERS basic funding policy provides for periodic contributions ill a level pattern of cost as of percentag~ of 
s.tlary throughout an cmplovoc's working lllotimc In order to accumulate 1ulliclent 1mels to pay benefits wtien 
due. 
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PERS receives an actuarial valuation on an annual basis for determlnins the prospective funding contribution 
rate~ required to fund the system on on actuorlal rcscl'\le basis. Contributions actually made are In accordance 
with tho required rates established by NRS. These statutory rates are lncreasod/docrcosed pursuant to NRS 
286.421 and 286.450, The actuarial funding method used Is the entry age normal cost method. It Is intended to 
meet the funding objective and result In a relatively level long-term contributions requirement os a percentage 
of salary. 

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the required contribution rotes for regular members were 15.25 percent and 
29.2S percent for employer/employee matching and EPC, respectively. Contributions to the pension plan from 
the Commission were $465,000 for the year ended June 30, 2020. 

PERS collective net pension liability was measured as of Juno 30, 20191 and the total pension liability used to 
colculo to tho not p1mslon liability was determined by an actuarial valuotlon as of that date, For this purpose, 
certain actuarial valuation assumptions are stipulated by GASB ond moy vary from thO$e used to determine the 
prospective funding contribution ra tes. 

The total PERS pension liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions (based on the results 
of an e~perience study for the period July 1, 2012 to Juno 30, 2016 dated October 16, 2017), applied to all 
periods Included In the measurement: 

Inflation Rate 
Payroll Growth 
Investment Rote of Return 
Productivity Poy Increase 
Consumer Price Index 
Actuarial cost method 
Projected Salary Increases 

Other Assumptions 

2,75~ 
5.00% Including Inflation 
7.5% 
0.5¾ 
2.75% 
Entry age normal and level percentage of payroll 
Regular: 4.25% to 9.15%, dopending on service 
Police/Fire: 4.55% to 13.90%, depending on service 
Rates Include Inflation and productivity increases 
Same as those used in the June 30, 2019 funding octuorlal valuation 

Mortality rotes (Regular and Police/Fire) - For healthy members It I$ the Head<:ount-Wolghtod RP•2014 Healthy 
Annuitant T.ible projected to 2020 with Scale MP-2016, set forward one ycor for spouses and beneficiaries. For 
oges less thon SO, mortality rotes are based on the Headcount - Weighted RP-2014 Employee Mortality Tables. 
Those monaliW rates are 11dj1.1sted by the rotlo or t11e mortollty rote for healthy annuitants at age 50 to the 
mortality rote for employees ot age SO. Tho mortalitv rates are then projected to 2020 with Scale MP,2016. 

The mortality table used In the actuarial valuation to projC!cl mortality ratC!S for all disabled regular members Is 
the Headcount - Weighted RP-2014 Ols.ibled Retiree Tobie, sot forward four yc11rs, 

For pro-rotlrC!mC!nt members It Is the Headcount - Weighted RP-2014 Employee Table, proJect~d to 2020 with 
Scale MP·20l6. 

The RP-2014 Headcount,Welahtcd Mort:ility Tables, set forward one year for spouses and beneficiaries, 
reasonably rellect the projected mortilllty cMperlcncc of the Plan a, of the mc.isuromcnt datt!. Tht! addition.ii 
projection of 6 ye1m Is a provision made for future mottallty improvcml!nt. 
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PERS's pollcles which determiM the Investment portfolio target aliliet allocatlon are established by the PERS 
8oard. The asset allocation Is reviewed annually and Is designed to meet the future risk and return needs of 
PERS. The Following target asset allocation policy was adopted as of June 30, 2019: 

Asset Class 

Oomf!stlc f!quity 
lntern;itlonal equity 
Domestic fixed Income 
Private markets 

Target 
Allocation 

4:.Z¾ 
18% 
28% 
12% 

Long-term Geometric 
Expected Real 

Rate of Return • 

5.50% 
5.50% 
0.75% 
6.6S% 

• These geometric return rates ore combined to produce the l0r1g-term expected rate of 
return by adding the long•term expected Inflation rate of 2.75%. 

The discount rate used to measure the toti.1I pension IIQblllty was 7.S0% as of June 30, 2019. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed t~at employee and employer contributions will be 
made at the rate specified by NRS. Based on the assumption, PERS's fiduciary n1it position at June 30, 20191 was 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and Inactive 
employees; Therefore, the long-term expected rate. of return on pension pion Investments (7 .SD%) was applied 
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability as of June 30, 2019. 

The Commission's proportionate share of the net pension liability at year end, calculated using the discount rote 
of 7 ,50%; as well as what the Commission's proport ionate share of the not pension liability would be if it were 
colculated using o discount rate that Is 1% lower (6.50%) or 1% higher (8.50%) than the current discount rote 
was as follows: 

Net pension llablllty 

1% becreosc In 
Discount Rate 

$ 9,268,638 

Discount Rote 

S 5,986,027 

1% Increase In 
Discount R11te 

$ 3,257,344 

Octolled Information about PERS fiduciary not position Is available In the PERS Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report, available on the PERS website, www.nvper5.org under publlcotlons. 

The Commission's proportionate 5hare (amount) of the collective net pension llablllty was $5,986,027 which 
represents 0.04390% of the collective net pension llabllliy, which Is a decrease from the prevlou5 year's 
proportionate share of 0.04395%, Contrlbutloni; for employer poy dote1 within the flscill year ended June 30, 
2019, were used as the bJsls for determining e:ich employer's proportionate share. Each empl0yer's pr0portlon 
of lhi! nut pension llablll\y Is based on their employer contributions relative to the total cmployt>r contributions 
for all employers for the period ended June 30, 2019. 
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For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Commission's pension cxpansa was $544,410 and Its reported deferred 
outflows and inflows of resour1;e$ rel.ited to pensions were as follows: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows Inflows 

of Resources of Resources 

Difference between expcctlld and actual llxperlence $ 224,469 $ 172,6S9 
Changes of assumptions or other Inputs 243,606 
Not difference blltwocn projllCtlld and actual earnings on investments 297,783 
Changes in proportion and differences between actual contribut ions 

and proportionate share of contributrions 150,075 95,238 
Contributions subsequent to measurement date 465,000 

$ 1,083,150 s 565,680 

At June 30, 20191 the avcragll expllcted remaining service life was 6.18 years. 

Deferred outflows of resources rnlated to pensions resulting from contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date totaling $465,000 will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension llablll ty In the year 
ending June 301 2021. 

Other amounts reported as defcrrod outflows and Inflows of resources rlllated to pensions will be recogni zed In 
pension eKpense as follows: 

Years ending June 30, 

2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
202S 

Total 

Note 12 - Employee Benefit Plans .. 

$ 

$ 

24,306 
(101,880) 

51,313 
44,825 
29,417 

4,489 

52,470 

Pion DtHcrlptlon - The employees of the Commission participate In a cosHharlng, multlple,employer, defined 
benefit postemployment plan odmlnlstered by tht! Bo:ird of the Public Employt!es' Benefits Prosr.im of th11 State 
of Nev:id:i (PEBP). NRS 287.023 provides officers and employees eligible to be covered by anv group Insurance, 
pion of benefits or medical .ind hospital service ostabllshod pursuant to NRS 287 the option upon rellrernent to 
cancol or continue any such coverage. The coli I to administer the proernm Is financed through the contributions 
and Investment comings of the plan. The PEBP Board Is grnnted tho authority to establish and amend the 
bcmoflt terms of tho program. (NRS 287.043) PEBP ls5ue1 a publldy ovallable flnilnclol report that Includes 
flnanclal statements and the required supplementary Information for the plan. That report may be obtained 
from Public EmployeC!s' Benefits Program, 901 South St~wart Street, Suite 1001 , Carson City, Nevada 89701. 
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Benefits Provided • Employees of the Commission, who meet the eligibility requirements for retirement and, at 
the time of retirement, are participants In the program, hove tho option upon retirement to continue group 
insurance pursuant to NAC 287.530. NRS 287.0436 establishes ii subsidy to pay an amount toword tho cost of 
the premium or contribution for persons retired from tho Commission. Retirees assume any portion of the 
premium not covernd by th<! Stat<!. The current subsidy rates tan be found ill pebp.state.nv.us. Benefits Include 
health, prescription drug, dental, and life Insurance coveroge. As required by statute, benents are determined 
by tho number or years of s<Jrvic@ at th@ time of retirement and the individual's initial dote of hire. Employees 
hired after December 31, 2011 are not eligible to receive subsidies to reduce premiums. The following 
lndlvlduols ond their dcpondtlnts are eligible to receive subsidies: 

Any PEBP covered retiree with the Commission whose last employer was the state and who: 
• was Initially hired prior to January 1, 2010 and has at least five yec1rs of public service: or 
• Was Initially hired on or after January 1, 2010, but before JiJnuary l, 2012 and has at least fifteen 

years of public service: or 

• Wos lnltlally hired on or after January 1, 2010, but before January 1, 2012 arid has at least rive yoors 
of public service and has a disability: or 

Any PEBP covered retiree whose last employer was not the state and who has been continuously covered under 
PEBP as a retiree since November 30, 2008. 

Contributions • Tho State allocates funds for payment of current and future post-employment benefits other 
than penslon5 i15 a percentage of butlgeted p11yrolls to all State agencies. The required contribution rate for 
employers, os a percentage of covered payroll, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 was 0.0234. For tho ye.ir 
ended June 30, 2020, these pc1yment~ toialed $72,666 for the Commission. 

OPEB I/obi/It/es, OPEB ,:xpense, deferred outflows of resources and de/arrnd Inflows of resources related to OPES· 
ttie Commission's net OPEB llabllity was measured as of June 30, 2019. The total OPEB liability used to calculate 
the net OPEB liability was determined by actuc1rlal valuotlon 11s of June 30, 2019. The Commission's proportion 
of the net OPES liability was based on tho commission's share of contributions to PEBP relative 10 the total 
contributions of all participating employers. At June 30, 2020 the Commission's proportion was 0.1627 percent. 

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Commlulon recognized OPEB O)(ponso of $123,598. At June 30, 2020, the 
Commission roportod deferred out flows of resources and deferred lnfiows of resources related to OPEB from 
the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflows of 
Resource5 Resources 

Changes of assumptions s 48,85 1 s 96,842 
Net difference between projected ond actut1I earnings 40,891 
Contrlbutlom subsequent to tho mcosurcmont d.itc 72,666 

Total s 121,S17 s 137,733 
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Deferred outflows of resources re lated to OPEB resulting from Employer contributions s1,1bseq1,1ent to the 
measurement date in the amount of $72,666 will be recognlied as a reduction of the net OPES liability In the year 
ending June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred Inflows or 
resources related to OPES will be recognized In OPEB expense os follows: 

Year ended Juno 30: 

2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 

Total 

$ (45,278) 
(37,633) 

(7,660) 
1,689 

$ (88,882) 

Actuarial Methods ond Assumption- The totol OPEB llablllty In the actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions and other inputs applied to all periods included In the measurement, unless 
otherwise specified: 

Inflation Rate 
Salary Increases 

Investment Rate of Return 
Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 

2.50% 
0.50% productivity pay Increase, 2.68% average promotional , 
increase 
3.51% 
7.5% Initial, 4.S% ultimate 

Mortali ty rates for healthy lndlvlduols were based on the RP-2014 combined healthy mortality projected to 2020 
with scale MP-2016. For healthy post-retirement Individuals, same assumptions were used, set forward one year 
for spouses and beneflclmrlos. Mortmllty rates for disabled individuals were based on the RP-2014 disabled 
retlrae mortality projected to Z020 with stale MP-2016, set forward 4 years. 

The actuarial assumptions used In the June 30, 2020 vc1h,1c1tlon were based upor, certoln demographic and othl!r 
actuarial assumptions as rccommonded by the actuary, In conjunction with the State and g1,1ldance from the GASB 
statement. 

D/1count Race • The discount rate basis under GASS 75 Is required to be consistent with a 20-Voar Munlclp;il 
Bond Index, The Borid Buyer General Obligation 20•Sond Municipal Bond Index Is used for the determln.itlon of 
the discount rnte. The assets In the trust as of June 30, 2019 11re less than tha cMpcctcd benefit p;iymonts In thl! 
first year; therefore, the crossover period Is :mumod to bo In th!! first year, which provides additional support 
for continuing the discount rate at the 20-Year Munlclpal Bond lnde11 rilte. The discount rate used to mc:uurc 
the total OPEB lliJblllty was 3.51%. 
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Sensitivity of the OPES llabllltles to changes In the discount rate • The following presents the net OPE8 llabllltlos 
of the plans, as well as what epch plan's net OPEB liebllity would be if It were calculated using a discount rate 
that Is 1-percentage-polnt lower (2.51 percent) or l •percentage•point higher (4.51 percent) than the current 
discount rate: 

1% Decrease 
In Discount 
Rate 2.51% 

$ 2,499,732 

Current 
Discount Rate 

Rate 3,51% 

$ 2,267,166 

1% Increase 
In D1£count 
Rate 4.51% 

$ 2,065,390 

Sensitivity of the OPEB llobilltles to changes In the healthcare cos I trend rates-The following presents the net OPE8 
llobllltlos of tho plans, as well as what each plan's net OPEB liability would be if It were c11lculated using healthcare 
cost trend rates that are 1-percentage,point lower or l •pcrccntage point higher than the current healthcare cost 
trend rotes: 

1% Decrease Current 1% Increase in 
In Healthcare Haalthcare in Healthr;are 
Costs Trend Costs Trend Costs Trend 

Rate Rate Rate 

$ 2,103,441 s 2,267,166 $ 2,461,652 

OPEB p/011 fiduciary net position • Detailed information about the OPEB plans' fiduci.irv net position Is availablo In 
the separately Issued audited annual financial statements of the Stato of Nllvada State l\etirees' Health and 
Welfare Benefits Fund, Public Employees' BeMfits Program financial report. 

Note 13 • Joint Venture 

The Commln!on 15 a member of the Sliver State Energy Assoclotion (SSEA), SSEA was established as a joint 
venture through an lnterlocal agreement among the member agencies (Members), which, In addition to the 
Cornmlnlon, Include tho City of Boulder City, Lincoln Power District No. l , Overton Power District No. S ond the 
SNWA 

SSEA Is an association of public agencies with the common goal or Jointly planning, developing, owning and 
operotlng power resources to meet their own need~ nnd those of their customers. The economies of scale 
produced by the SSEA offer Improved project development opportunities and power purchasing capablllllu, the 
sharing of resources and expert ise, ilnd tho opportunity for Jointly monagod energy needs. 

As appropriate projects ore selected for development, the Momb!!rs Involved In e;,ch project enter Into a project 
sl!rvlce agreement (PSA) Indicating each participating Member's allocotlon of project costs. 

Tho business and othN affairs of tho SSEA are conducted by a Board of Directors consisting of one director 
appointed by each Member. The i!ppolnted director m.iy, but need not be, a member Qf the govcrnlns body of 
tho Mombor. 
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Financial Information reearding SSEA can be obtained by writing: 

Manager of Energy Accounting for 
the Sliver State Energy Assoclotlon 

P.O. Box 99956, MS 115 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89193·9956 

The SSEA website is www.silverstateenergy.org/. 

Note 14 • Related Party 

Tho Commission Is governed by seven commissioners; three of whom are appointed by the Southern Nevada 
Water Authority (SNWA) and four, Including the board Chair, appointed by the Governor. Tht! commission .ind 
SNWAdo not share staff membt!rs or members of management, The SNWA, a local governmental organization, 
is also one of the Commission's principal revenue payers (sec Tobie S In Statistlc;il Saction), In fiscal 2020, the 
Commission rncelvod revenues from tht! SNWA for power ;md water resources but made no payments to the 
SNWA for any purpose. The SNWA publishes a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report which can be seen on 
their website at SNWA.com. In addition, the Commls$i0n's capa<;lties work with other public entitles, SNWA, 
other states, and various governmental entitles In fulfilling Its stotutory rcsponslbllltlcs; however, no other 
entity ho& representatives on the board. In fiscal 2020, SNWA accounted for revenue of $11,713,784. 

43 



Required Supplementary Information 
June 30, 2020 

ATTACHMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 



Proportion of 
the collective 

Valuation Date net pension 
June 30. ll11blllt:t: 

2014 0 .04795% 
2015 0 .04795% 
2016 0 .04902% 
2017 0 .04412% 
2018 0.0439S% 
2019 0.04390% 

ATTACHMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Proportionate Share of the Collective Net Pension Llablllty lnformntlon 

Multiple - Employer Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 end Prior Nine Fiscal V'oars• 

Proportlom1te 
shore of the PERS 

Proportionate collcctlvo net fiduciary net 
shore or tho pension liability position ilS a 

collective net as a percentage percentogo of 
pension Covered of covered the totol ponsion 

llablllt:t: iasset! ealroll eayroll llfibllit:t 

s 6,305,091 s 2,348,229 268.50% 76.31% 
4,997,140 2;531,235 197.42% 75.13% 
6,596,117 2,575,317 2S6.13% 72.23% 
5,867,314 2,701,732 217.17% 74.40% 
5,993,734 2,856,435 209.839' 75.21% 
5,986,027 2,970,488 201.52% 76.46% 

• Information for the multiple-employer cost-sharing defined bent;!flt pension plan Is not ovolloblc for yonrs prior to 
the year ended June 30, 2014. As the Inform.it Ion becomes available, this schedule will ultimately prasent 
Information for the ton most recent fiscal years. 
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Statutorily 
required 

Fiscal Year contribution 

2014 $ 527,504 $ 
2015 507,091 
2016 523,41 1 
2017 395,979 
2018 406,477 
2019 423,042 
2020 460,007 

ATTACHMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Statutorily Required Employer Contribution lnforrnotlon 

Multiple - Employer Cost-Sharing Ooflned Benefit Pension Plan 
For the Fisc.11 Year Ended June 30, 2020 and Prior Nine Fiscal Years • 

Contributions 
In relation to Contributions 
the statutorily Contribution 11s a percentage 

required deficiency Covered of covered 
contributions !excess) eo~roll ea;i:roll 

527,504 s $ 2,348,299 22.46% 
507,091 2,531,235 20.03% 
523,411 2,575,317 20.32% 
395,979 2,701,732 14.66% 
406,477 2,856,435 14.23% 
423,042 2,970,488 14.24% 
465,000 3,091,661 15,04% 

• Information for the multiple-employer cost-sharing defined benefit pension plan Is not ovollablc for years 
prior to the year ended June 30, 2014. As the Information becomes available, this schedule will ultlmatclv 
present Information for the ten most recent fiscal years. 
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Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Schedule of Commission Contributions for Other Postemployment Benefits 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 and Prior Nine Flscal Years • 

2018 2019 2020 

Commission's proportion of the net OPEB liability 0.1740% 0,1675% 0.1627% 

Commission's proportionate share of the net OPEB llablllty 2,261,443 2,218,398 2,267,166 

Commission's covered payroll 2,891,310 3,167,417 3,105,221 

Commission's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 
os a percentage of Its covered payroll 78.215:.l¾ 70.0381% 73.0114% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the tot;il 
OPEB liability 11.3300% 0.1205% 0.0166% 

• GASB Statement No. 75 requires ten ye,m of information to be presented In this table, However, until 
ten years of data Is available, CRC will present Information only for thoso years which lnform;itlon 
is av;iilable. 
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Colorado River Commiss ion of Nevada 
Schedule of Changes in Net Other Postemployment Benefits Lloblllty and Related Ratios 

For tho Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 and Prior Nine Fiscal Years • 

2018 2019 2020 

Contractually required contribution $ 68,23S $ 52,354 $ 72,662 
Contributions In relation to the contractually required 

contribution 66 117 69,279 72,666 

Contribution excess (deficiency) p.11a1 16,925 4 

Commission's covered payroll $2,749,712 $ 3,167,417 $ 3,105,221 

Contributions as II pcrcentngc of covered payroll 
2.48% 1.6S% 2.34% 

• GASB Statement No. 75 requires ten years of information to be presented In this toblo. However, until 
ten years of data is available, CRC will present information only for those years which Information 
is available. 
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ATTACHMENT A 

EideBailly 
CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS 

lndepandent Auditor's Report 

To the Members of the Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Colorado River Commission 
las VGgas, NGvada 

Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental actlvltlos, the business­
type activities, and each major fund of the Colorodo River Commission of Nevada (the Commission), as 
of and for tho year ended June 30, 2020, and the rela ted notes tb the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Commission's basic flnonclal statements ns llstod In the table of contents. 

M;1n1gement1
5 Responslblllty for the Financial Statements 

Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these flnanclol statements In 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In th United States of America; this Includes 
the design, Implementat ion, and maintenance of Internal control relevant to the preporotlon ond fai r 
presentation of financial statements that are free from motcrfaf misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibllity Is to express opinions on these flnanclol statements basod on our audit, We 
conducted our audit In accordance wlth auditing standards generally accepted In the United Stoles of 
America and the standards applicable to f lnonclol oudlts contolned In Government Auditing Standards, 
Issued by the Comptrollor General of t~e United States. Those standards require that we plan ond 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurnncc about whether the flnonclal statements are free from 
material mlsstatoment. 

An audit Involves performing proc11dures to obtain audit evidence ;1bout the amounts ond dlsclosuros In 
the financia l statements. The procedures selected depend on the oudltor's Judgment, Including the 
osscssmcnt of the risks of matGrlal mlmatemMt of the linandal statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessmenu, the oudltor comlders lnternol control rel@vant to the entity's 
preparation and fa ir presentation of thi! financia l statements In order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose or expressing an opinion on the 
effcctlvencu of the entity's Internal control. Accordingly, w i! express no sut h opinion. An audit also 
lndud11s evalu11tlng the appropriateness of account ing policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates modo by m11nagomen1, u well as evaluating the overnll prescnt.itlon of 
thil financial sti! temcnts, 

WI! b1?1i1?ve that the audit cvidcn1:c we hove ob\olned Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 

What ln1plr11 you, ln1plr11 u1. Llt'1 t•lk. I 1ld1ballly.r:om 
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ATTACHMENT A 

opinions 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fai rly, In all material re:.pocts, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the buslness-typB actlvltlBs, and each major 
fund of the Commission as of June 30, 20201 and the respective changes In financial position and, whore 
applicable, cash flows, thereof, and the respective budgetary comporlson for tho Genrmil Fund and the 
Research and Oevelopmont Fund for the year then ended In accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary ln/ormotlon 
Accounting prlnclples generally accepted In the UnitBd States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis, schedule of funding progress for the OPEB llablllty, and pension trnnd data on 
pages XX through XX and XXX through XXX be presented to supplement the basic financial 5tatements. 
Such Information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, Is required by tho Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers It to be an <!ssentlal part of financial reporting for placing 
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, ecqnomlc, or hlstorlcal context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the monogemont's discussion and Malysis and pension and OPES 
trend data, In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the U lted States of America, 
which consisted of Inquiries of monogemont about the methods of preparing the lnform11t!on and 
comparing the information for consistency with managem nt's responses to our Inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit or the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or pr v{de any assurance on the Information because the 
limlted procedures do not provide us with sufflcle~t evidence to express an opinion or pro1.1lde any 
assurance. 

Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise tho Commission's ba~c financial statements. The introductory section and 
statistical section shown on rases )(X through XX ond XX through XX are presented for purposes of 
addition al oni,lysls and are not a reqlll r'fd part of the basic financial statements. The Introductory 
section and statistical sectlon have not been subjected to tho 11udltlng procedures applied in the eudlt of 
the basic flnanclal statements and., accordingly, we do not eKpress an opinion or provide 11ny assurance 
on them. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordanco with Government Auditing Standards, we have also Issued our report dated xxxxxxxxxx 
on our consideration of the Comml55lon's Internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of Its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations; contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. 
The purpose of that report Is solely to describe the scope of our testing of Internal control over flnancl:il 
reporting and compllanco and tho results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report Is on 
Integral part of an audit performed In accordance with Government Auditing Standards In considering 
the Commission's internal control over financial reporting and compliance, 

EB Signature 

Las Vegas, Nevada 
XXXXXXXXXX)( 
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EideBailly 
CPAt & BUSI NISS ADVl50R5 

Independent Audltor'5 Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compllance and 
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Flnanclal Statement5 Performed In Accordance with Govarnment 

Auditing Standards 

To the Members or tho Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Colorado River Commission 
Las Vegas, Nevada 

We have audited, In accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted In the Unltod States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained In Government Auditing Standards 
Issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
(the Commission) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to tho flnanclol 
statements, which collectively comprise the Commission's boslc financial staternt!nts and have Issued 
our report thereon datod XXXXXXXXXX. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the flnanclal statements, we consldornd the Commiukm's 
Internal control over flnanclol reporting (internal corit rol) as a basis for designing audit procedures that 
are appropriate In the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Commission's 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the cffectlvoncss of the Commission's 
Internal control. 

A deficiency In Internal control exists whon tho design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, In the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, mlmotcmonts on a tlmcly basis. A mater/a/ weakness Is a deficiency, or o 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there Is a reasonable posslblllty that a material 
mlutatement of the entity's flnanclal statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deflr;lency Is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, In Internal control 
ttiat Is Ion severe than a material weakness, yet Important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of Internal control wa5 for the llmlted purporn described In the fi rst parasraph of this 
5ect1011 and wa~ not de,lgned to Identify all deficiencies In Internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or slsnlflcant daflclencles. Given the5c llmltatlom, during our audit we did not Identify any 
deflc;lenc:lc5 In Internal control that we consider to bl'.' matt'rl31 weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses m.iy e~lst that have not been lclcntlfled. 

What ln1plr11 you, lneplrH u1. L1t11 talk. I 1ld1b1llly.com 
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compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Commission's financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statemtints. Howevl!r, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not o~pross such an opinion. The 
results of our ttists dlsclosl!d no instancl!s of noncompliance or other matters that sre required to be 
reported under Government Avdltlng Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 
Tho purposg of this report Is solllly to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effoctlvcncss of the 
entity's Internal control or on compliance. This report Is an Integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Avdftlng Standards In considering the entity's Internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication Is not suitable for any other purpose. 

EB Signature 

Las Vegas, Nevada 
,xxxxxx xx 



DATE 

To the Governing Body of the 
Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Las Vegas, Nevada 

ATTACHMENT A 

We have audited the flnanclol statements of Colorado River Commission of Nevada (the Commission) as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and have Issued our report thereon dated (Date) . Professional 
standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit. 

Our Responslblllty In Relation to the Flnanclal St11tcmcnt Audit under Generally Accepted Auditlnt 
Standards and Government Auditing Standards 

As communicated in our letter dated September 28, 20201 our responsibility, as described by professional 
standards, Is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial st3tements that have been prepared 
by management with your oversight are presented fai rly, in all material respects, in accordance with 
accounting prlnclples generally accepted In the United States of America. Our audit of the financial 
statements does not relieve you or management of your respective responsibillties. 

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, ls lo plan jlr'ld perform our audit to obtain 
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
mlmatoment. An audit of flnanclal state menu Includes consideration of internal control over flnancl;1I 
reporting as II basis for designing audit procedures t~at are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of e)(presslng an opinion on the effectiveness of thientity's Internal control over flnanclal reporting. 
Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the Internal control of the Commission solely ror the purpose 
or determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such Internal control. 

We arc also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, In our 
professlonal Judgment, relevant to your re5p0nsibilitles in overseeing the flnanclol reporting process. 
However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to 
communicate to you. 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to you. 
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ATTACHMENT A 

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 

Tho ongagem1mt team, others In our firm, as appropriate, our firm, and other firms utillled in the 
engagement, If applicable, have complied with all relevant ethlcol requirements regarding 
Independence. 

Qualitative Aspects of the entity's Significant Accounting Practices 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Management hos the rcsponsiblll ty to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of 
the significant accounting policies adopted by the Commission Is Included In Note 1 to the financial 
statements. There have boon no Initial selection of accounting pollcles during 2020. 

As disclosed In Note 1 to the flnanclal statomonts, the Commission changecl Its accounting policy 
during the year with respect to how the State of Nevada Treasurer's Interest Is accounted for In tho 
General Fund. In previous yoars, o portion of tho Interest was allocated from the General Fund to the 
other funds In a manner similar to the allocation of overhead expenses. In the current year, 
manoBement determined that this allocation to othcir runds Is unt\Clc(!ssary since the other funds each 
receive their own allocation of interest from the ~tete of Nevada. This new method Is prererable to 
the Commlulon as management bellovos ll more accuratolv reflects the income attributable to each 
fund. The cumulative impact of this change in iltcounting policy on net position/ net fund balance 
cannot be determined; However, In the current year, tho change In tho GanC!rnl Fund balance was 
approximately $4<1,000 higher under the new method than it would hilve been under the previous 
ollocatlon method. 

No matters have como to our ,Jttontlon thot would require us, undcir professional standards, to 
Inform you about (1) the methods used to acco1.1nt for 5ignlflcant unusuill transactions and (2) the 
effect of significant accounting pollcles In controversial or emerging arcos for which there Is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consen~us. 

Significant Accounting Estimates 

Accounting estimates are an Integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and 
ore based on monogement's current Judgments. Thoso Judgments are normally based on knowledge 
and e~porlcnce about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain 
accounting estimates arc particularly sensitive because of their significance to tho fln.inclal 
statcmllnts and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly from 
manaeement's current Judgments. 

The rnost sensitive accounting estlm.1tes affecting the l!nanclal statements are: 

• Other postemployment benefit plans' actuarial accrued llabllltle, 
• Pension pl.1ns' octuarlol occrued l!abllltles 
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Wo ovaluatod the koy factors and assumptions used to develop the estimate5 and determined that It 
Is reasonable In relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whols. 

Financial Statement Disclosures 

Certain financial statement dlsdosures Involve significant Judsment and arc particularly sensitive 
because of their significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the 
Commission's flnani;lal statements relate to the disclosures associated with the defined benefi t pension 
plan and the other post-employment benefits. These are sensitive because they represent a significant 
percentage of the llabllitles presented on the statement of net position. 

Significant Dlfflcultles Encountered during the Audit 

We encountered no signific:ant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of 
the audit. 

Uncorrected and Corrected Mlsstatciments 

For purposes of this communication, profossional s andards require us to accumulate all known and 
likely misstatements Identified during the audit, ot~er than those that we believe arc trivial, and 
communicate them to the appropriate levC!I of maniigement. Furth@r, profession;,I stilndards require 
us to also communicate tile effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the 
relevant classes of transactions, account bj1lonc@s or disclosurns, and the financial statements as a 
whole, 

The following misstatements that we Identified as a result of our audit procedures were brought to 
the 
attention of, and corrected by, monagcment: 

Adjustlnn Journal C:ntrlu• JE II 9 
To 00rr1ct t1■11fflcallon ol 111>•nn. 

200••1400•04•7 tOO WATER STAfE OWNEO 8~00 RNNl&O 

200-4400,04•7060 wnlnr BOE ContrnclB 

Total 

GASB Entrlo~ JE 1110 
To COITlc1 thl capllll 11111 dl1po■al In QASB 1nlry. 

200•4400·00-18S3 NO· /tiitomobllua 

35,218.00 

3U11.00 

-- -

64,840,00 

35,lll,00 

2110•4490•04•7640 Oo11rollluUon o"l]onao • oowmrnonlnl ocUllUH 

QA.EB-11103 

Total 

Automolllln& 

27,420.00 

27,.20.00 

u , .. o.oo u ,uo.oo 
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Tile following summarizes uncorrected financial statement misstatements whoso crrccts In the 
current ond prior periods, as determined by management, are Immaterial, both individually and In 
the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

General Fund and Governmental Activities 
Certoln revenues were recorded In tho Improper period, resulting In an understatement of 
receivables of $12,632, an 1,mderstatement of revenues of $7,161, and an understatement of fund 
balance/ net position of $5,471. 

Government Activities Only 
The adjustments made for OPEB did not take the imp~ct of the Implicit 5ubsldy Into account, resulting 
in on understatement of deferred outflow of r<?sources of $20,661, understatement of beginning net 
position of $20,3S6, and overstatement of expenses of $305. 

Power Delive;y Fund and Business• Type Activities 
A vehicle purchase was accrued to an expense account In fiscal year 2020 when the vehicle was not 
delivered until fiscal year 2021. This resulted in an overstatement of accounts payable and oxponscis 
of $49,733. 

The effect of these uncorrected misstatements Is d9scribcd abovci for oach resp!!ctive fond as well as 
the government-wide financial statements. 

Olu greements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, profcsslonnl standards define a dlsagrcom!!nt with management as a 
matt!!r, whether or not r~solved to oµr satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter, which could be slgnlflcilnt to tho Commission's financial statements or the auditor's 
report. No such disagreements arose during the course of the ;iudit. 

Representations Requested from Maru1gement 

We have requested certain written representations from management which are Included In tho 
management representation letter dated "(dote of management ,,presentation letter!" , 

M1n11ement's Consultat lon, with Other Accountants 

In 5ome casei;, manogement may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, Management Informed us that, and to our knowledge, there ware no 
consultations with other occountont, regarding auditing ond occ:ountll'lg matters, 

Other s1, nlflcant M1t11r1, Flndln11, or IH UII 
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In tho normal cours(! of our professional association with the Commls51on, we generally discuss a variety 
of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, operating 
conditions affecting the entity, and operatin@ plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material 
misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted In a condition to our retention as the 
Commission's auditors. 

Other Information In Documents Containing Audited Flnanc;h1I Statements 

Pursuant to professional standards, our responsibility as auditors for other information In documents 
containing the Commission's audited financial statements does not extend beyond the financial 
Information Identified In th(! audit report, and we are not required to perform any procedures to 
corroborate such other information. However, In accordance with $UCh standards, we have read the 
other Information and considered whether such Information, or the manner of its prosont11tlon1 WM 

materially Inconsistent with Its presentation In the financial statements. 

Our responsibility also includes communicating to you any Information which we believe Is a material 
misstatement of fact. Nothing come to our attention that cau~\!d us to believe that such information, 
or Its mann<lr or presentation, is m.iterially inconsistent with the Information, or manner of Its 
pre5entation, appearing In the flnonclal stotcm(rnts. 

This report Is Intended solely for tho Information and usa of the Board or Comminloners, the Finance 
Committee, and management of Colorado River Co"lmission of Nevada ond Is not Intended to be and 
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

"Eide Bi!illy Signature;' 

Las Vegas, Nevada 
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Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2020 

Governmental BUSIMSS•lypc 
Activities Activities Total 

Aor.ts 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash cqulvalcnts, unrostrl,tod $ 14,192,971 $ 4,241,160 s 18,434,731 
Rec~lvablcs 

Accounts 15,S60 1,921,600 1,917,160 
Accrued Interest ?9,466 32,511 111,977 

lnte1nol balances 227,765 (227,765) 
Pr~pold 1wn1 16,547 494,454 SU,001 
cu,rent portion of plcpAld power 11686,284 t,6861284 

Total current ancts 14,532,309 8,148,844 221&n,1s3 
Noncurront Mscts 

Reitrlttod c~lh ~rid ,uh oqulvalonts 2,602,818 2,602,818 
caplrnl uuit, being dcprC(latcd. net 0( ~ccumulatcd depreciation 10,690 45,162,047 45,112,H7 
Propold power, net of current portion 23,863-1)42 23,863,942 

Total noncurrent assets -10,690 71,628,807 71,639,497 
Total~neu 14,542,999 79,777,GSl 94,310,650 

Deforrcd Outflows of Resou,ces 
Oehtrlcd gmountJ rolatcd to OPED 121,517 Ul,517 
Deferred omounts tclated to pensions 1,os311so 1,081,150 

Tola I deferred outflows of resources 1,204,667 1,204,667 

Total assets nnd deferrnd outflows of fi!Jourccs 1 1s,74?1G6G $ 79,777,651 s 9S,Sl5,317 

llabllitles 

Cyrrtnt Liabilities 
Accounts pay.iblc $ 198,888 $ 2,785,214 s 2,984,102 
Arnuud payroll 181,463 18 l,A63 
Unearned tcvcnuc S8,763 3, \54,988 3,2 11,7~1 
Poy4blo to customers l ,?2G,G83 l,7l6,683 
Cu1\omor coll;ilornl ;md othor dop0slt1 1,19~,23$ 1,196,235 
Cuflcnt porllon of occ1ucd compensated Ob$oncc:s 328,966 3l8,966 
Current portion of bonds payable 755,000 ?SS,000 
Atc,ucd lntcrelt 260,§64 2001564 

Toti I current llabilllles 768,080 9,876,684 1D1646,76~ 
Noncur,cnt Llnbllltlcs 

iiond~ p1y;blu, nvl of current ponlon 2S,847,118 2S,8A1,118 
unurned rcvtnuc, net or current porli1m 42,247,331 42,247,331 
Amuod compcrimou absences, net or curtcnt porllon 189,443 139,443 
Not OPE B ll~blllly 2,267,165 2,267, IGS 
Net pension liability s,os&1021 5,986,027 

Total nonturront llabllltlo, 8,442,635 68,094,449 7G1Sl?1084 
Oo forrad 1nllow1 or Resources 

Drf~rrod 1moun11 rol1tod to OJ>U 1)7,73) 117,733 
Dcforrod amoun11 rel~ted to pcn11o;u 565,680 565,680 

Tot Al delorred Inflow~ of rumutn1 ?OJ 413 701413 
Tolal llabllltla, and deferred Inflow, of rnsourccs 9,914,118 7719131Ul 87,837,261 

Not Po1111on 
Nql lnvo11mon1 In t~p1t1l 111•h 10,6?0 45,162,047 45,112,737 
Ri!UIIClild tot lillHrth ind rev~ll)pmonl 11,BI0,?SB 11,810,958 
Unrol\flC l id !S/1881110! 143,lH,Sl'>I !4?13~S1Gl91 

TOIII f\Ct pu,ltlor, S111l31~JH 1,804,5 18 7,618,0~6 

Tot1I ll1blllllc1, duforrud Inflow, ol 101ourcc, ind not po,ltlnn $ I S1?471uGG $ 7!117771651 $ 9S1Sl'li3l7 

S@@ Not@s to Flnancl,,I Sli>tements 14 
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Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Statement of Activities 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Program Net (Expenses) Revenue and 
Revenues Chanses In Net Position 

Charges for Governmental Business-type 
Expenses Services Activities Activities Totll 

F1,mc1Ions/Progr3111s 

Government.ii Activities 
General government $ 2,853,053 $ 2,912,999 $ 59,946 s $ 59,946 
RCICMCh and dovclopmiint 425,SSll 720,38S 2941829 294,829 

3,278,609 3,633,384 354,775 354,7?5 
Business-type Activities 

Power markctlns 28,095,112 28,060,731 (34,381) (34,381) 
Power delivery 16,101,489 16,047,305 IS4,184I IS4-184J 

44,196,601 44,108,036 !8815651 (88,565) 

Total $ 47,415,210 s 47i741.420 
j 

354,775 (88,565) iGG,210 

General Revenues 
Investment Income 382,851 139,S16 S22,367 
Gain on disposition or 

property and equipment 2,806 2,806 
Mlscelloncous 67,385 67138S 

453,042 139,516 5921558 

Change In net posl11011 807,817 S0,951 858,768 

Net position, beginning 5,025,?ll 1,753,567 6,779,288 

Nol i,osi1lo11, ending $ S,833,538 s 1,804,518 $ 7,63!!,056 

S!!e Notes to Fln;,nclal Statements 15 



ATTACHMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Balance Sheet 

Governmental Funds 
JUM 30, 2020 

Research and 
Oevclopmcnt Total 

Special Govornmontal 
Gener~! Fund Revenue Fund Funds 

Assets 

CHh .ind CDSh EQulv;ilcnts s 2,389,299 $ 11,803,672 
Receivables 

Accoun1s 15,560 
Accrued Interest 13,417 66,049 

Prepaid Items 16,547 
Oue from Other Fund5 227,765 

Total assets $ 2,662,588 s 11,869.nl 

Liabilities and Fund Balances 

liabilities 
Accounts payable $ 198,888 $ 
Accrued poyroli 181,463 
Unearned revenue S8,?63 

Tot~l ll~billtlcs 3801351 s~.763 

F1md 8.11.incc, 
Nonspendable • prepaid Items 16,547 
Restricted for research and development 11,810,958 
Unasslancd 2,265,690 

Total lund balances 2,282,237 ll,810,9S8 

Total llabilltles and lund balances 2,662,588 $ 11,869,721 

Roconclllatlon of tho Balance Sheet of the Governmental Funds to lhc St:1tomcnt of Net Position 

Amounts reported for go11ernmental octlllllics In tho stotcmcnt of not position are different because 
lona•torm ll~bllltlc, that are not due and payable In the current 
period are not reportcd In tho funds. 

Accrued ,ompensated absMces 
Net OPeB llablllly 
Net pension llablllty 

Defcmd outflow, and Inflows of ,csourcc, related to pensions and 
OPED aro applicable to future periods and, thcroforc, arc not 
rePQrted In iho fuf\ds, 

Doforred Inflows ol resources related to OPEB 
Deferred Inflow, of tasources related to pensions 
Dellmed outflows of resources re13ted to OPEB 
Dcfolrod out flows of rcsourcos rnlat<!d to pensions 

Caplt.'11 outlays io purch~so or build oplt~I a nets are reported In 
tho govornmontal funds as <!Mpandlturo,. For 11ovornmcn10I 
~etlvlt lc1, those com arc (,1pllall1od In the statement of net position 
and depreciated over their estlmMed usc fyl llvu~. 

NN poi.It Ion of 1011ornmcn1.it "c\l\illlos 

See Note5 to Flnonclal St:itements 

$ (518,~09) 
(2,267,165) 
(5,986,027) 

(137,733) 
(SGS,680) 
l i l ,517 

1.083,H,0 

$ 14,192,971 

1S,S60 
79,466 
16,S47 

227t76S 

$ 14,532,309 

$ 198.SJ88 
181,463 
58.763 

439,114 

16,547 
11.810.958 
2,265,690 

14,093,19S 

(8, 771,6011 

so 1.254 

10,690 

~_lli,ll_B 
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ATTACHMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances 

Governmental Funds 
Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Research ~nd 
Development 

Special 
General Fund Revenue Fund 

Revenues 

ch~rses for services $ 2,912,999 s 
Investment Income 66,435 316,416 
Multl•specles surcharge 720,385 
Miscellaneous 67,385 

Total revenues 3,0461819 1,036,801 

Expenditures 

Current 
General administration S,G83,GS3 
less salaries and overhead recovered by ollocouo" !2,985,1221 

Net general administration expenditures U98,S31 

Mvltl•SPCCICI assessment 42S,SSG 
Water purchases 13,258 

Totol c•pcndlturcs 2,711?89 42515S6 

Other flnonclna sources 

Proceed from the sole of asset 2,806 

Excou (doflclency) of rovl!nues over (under) 
expenditures and change In fund bolonce$ 331,836 611,245 

Fund balnnccs, bcglnnlns 1,944,401 11.199.713 

Fund balances, ending s 2,282,237 s 11,810,958 

Reconcllln tlon of the St~tomont of l\ovcnuos, Expenditures and Changes In Fund llolnnccs of Governrncnt.il 
Funds to the Statement of Activities 

Amounts reported for govon1montal actlvltll!s In tho statement of octl11itles nrc cliHcrcnt bccou1c 

Chnngc In fund balances, sovurnmc:r1fol funds 

Govornmcmtal funds report capitol outlnys n, expondlturos. f1owcvcr, 
In the mtcrnont of octlvltlos the cost of thoso anot1 Is allocatl!d 
ovor thalr ostlmatod useful lives Bnd rl!portod as depreciation 
expense, lhls Is the amount by which dcprccln tlon expenio w~s sraMer 
than capitol outlays In the currcni period, 

Somo uper1Ses reported In the statement ol activiliOS do not require, 
the use of current lln~ntl3t r01ourccs 3nd, therefore, ~,e not 
reported u oMPcndlture1 In fiovornmcntal funds, 

Ch,mRC! In accrued compensated atur.ncr., 
ChJnse In Ml OPE8 llablllty a;id rtloted deferred 

uutflow1 and Inflows of re1ourcu 
ChJn1c In net pcnilon IIJbllllV and rol~ tcd dcfcrrud 

oul0ow1 and Inflow, oi ro1ourcc1 

Chango In net position or governmental a,t1vltle1 

See Notes to Financial Statements 

(60,301) 

M.486 

(89.8SS) 

Total 
Government~! 

Funds 

$ 2,912,999 
382,851 
720,385 
67138S 

410831620 

5,683,653 
12191s,1221 

2,698,531 

425,556 
13,258 

3,137,345 

21806 

949,081 

1U441114 

$ 14,093,195 

949,081 

IS,5941 

s 1107,1117 
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ATTACHMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual 

General Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Variance 
Bud11et with 

<5rlglnal ~lnal Actual Flnal Budget 
Revenues 

Power admlniWotlvc charge $ 2,363,229 $ 2,363,229 $ l,S89,854 $ (773,375) 
Water charges 2,205,893 2,205,893 1,323,145 (882,748) 
Investment Income 80,202 80,202 66,435 (13,767) 
Miscellaneous 59,347 59,347 67,385 8,038 

Total revenues 4.708,671 4,708,671 3,046,819 111GG1,ss21 

E~pcnditurcs 

Current 
General goverriment 

Personnel services 5,306,863 5,306,863 4,309,103 997,760 
Travel 

Out-of-state 56,889 56,889 36,289 20,600 
ln•state 9,485 9,485 2,518 6,967 

Operating 
Rent and Insurance 146,091 146,091 147,679 (1,588) 
Oues and registration foes 71,215 71,215 75,082 (3,867) 
Conuactuol S()rvicos 759,207 759,207 140,385 618,822 
Other 261,~80 263,280 274,023 (10,743) 

Legol 609,844 609,844 609,465 379 
Equipment, fur11lture and software 159.472 159,472 89,109 70,363 
Water purcha5e5 13,2S5 14,lSS 13,258 897 

Total expenditures 7,394,201 7,396,501 5,696,911 1,699,S90 

Leu salaries and overhead 
recovered by ~llocation p.?25,577! !2,725,S77) (2,985,122) 259,545 

Net expenditures 4,668,624 4,670,9l4 2,711,789 1,959,135 

Other financing sources 

Proceeds from ,ale of asset 2,806 2,806 

Excon (dofltloncy) of rcvenul!s 
over (under) expenditures 
olld change In fund balance 40,04'1 37,747 337,836 300,089 

Fund balance, bee1nn1n1 1,692,571 1,932,745 1,944.401 11,656 

rund bolonce, endlnR $ 15'32,618 $ 1,970,492 s 2,282,237 s 311,745 

See Notes to Flnanclol Statements 18 



ATTACHMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changas in Fund Bil lance Budget and Actual 

Research and Development Special Rt::lV!!nue Fund 
Yeilr Ended June 30, 2020 

Variance 
Budsct with 

Orlsinal Final Actual Final Budget 
Revonuos 

Investment Income $ 185,520 $ 218,447 $ 316,416 $ 97,969 
Multi-species surcharge 749,016 749,016 720,385 (28,631) 

Total revenues 934,S36 967.463 1,036,801 69,338 

EKpcndltures 

Multl-spcclos amissment 978,948 978,948 425,556 553,392 

Net e,cpendltures 978,948 978,948 42S1SS6 553,392 

Exeesi (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 
and change in fund balance (44,412) (11,485) 611,245 622,730 

Fund bi!l!lnce, beginning 10,557,285 11,184,879 11,199,713 14,834 

Fund bolonce, ending $ 10,S121873 $ 11,173,394 $ 11,a1019s e s 637,564 

See Notes to Flnilnclal 5taternenls 19 



ATTACHMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Statement of Net Position 

Proprietary funds 
June 30, 2020 

Business-type Activities 

Power 
Entererlse Funds 

Powe, 
Marketln& OcllvC!Y Totals 

Assets 

cu,rcnt Assets 
Cash .ind cash equivalents, unrestricted $ 2,669,070 $ 1,572,690 $ 4,241,760 
Receivables 

Accounts 886,626 1,034,974 1,921,600 
Accrued interest 24,532 7,979 32,511 

Prepaid items 444,647 49,807 494,454 
Current portion of prepnld power 1,686,284 1,686,284 

Total current assets 5,711,159 2166S14S0 8,376,609 

Noncurrent Assets 
Restricted cash and cash equlvolents 2,281,0!)8 321,720 2,602,818 
Capita! asseu 

Power transmission system, net 6,887,139 38,064,210 44,951,349 
Automobiles ond equipment, not 210,698 210,698 

Prepaid power, net of current portion 231863,942 23,863,942 

Tot:il non cu rrcnt assets 3 3,032,179 38,S961628 71,628,807 

Total assets s 38,743,338 s 41,262,078 $ 80,005,416 

Llabllllies 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts payable s 1,809,537 s 975,677 s 2,785,214 
Unearned revenue 1,429,554 1,725,434 3,154,988 
Povnble to Cll$torncrs 60,971 1,665,712 1,726,683 
cv1torner collater~I Md other deposits 1,168,575 27,660 1,196,235 
Current portion of bonds payable 755,000 755,000 
Duo to other funds 17,534 210,231 227,76S 
Actruud interest 260,564 260,564 

Total current liabilities S,S01,73S 4,604,714 10,106,449 

Noncurrcnt llobllit ies 
Bonds pnyabte, net of current portion 25,847,118 25,847,118 
Un<!arned revenue 5,858,748 36,388,583 42,247,331 

lotal noncurrent llabllltles 31,705,866 36,388,583 68,094,449 

Total liabilities 37,207,601 40,993,297 78,200,898 

Not Position 
Net Investment In rnpl tal Pnets 6,887,139 38,274,908 45,162,047 
Unrestricted jS,3511402! j38,006,1271 j43,3s11s291 

Total net position 1,535,737 268,781 1,B041S 18 

Total llabllitll!!o and net position s 38,743,338 s 41,262,078 ~ eo,oos141G 

See Notes to Flnanclol Slattments 20 



ATTACtlMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes In Net Position 

Proprietary Funds 
Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Business-type Activities 
Entererlse Funds 

Power Power 
Mi!rketin~ Ocllverl Totals 

Operating Revenues 
Power s:i les $ 28,060,731 s 16,047130S _j 44,108,036 

Operating E><penses 
Powtir purchastis 25,817,589 11,173,479 36,991,068 
Prepaid power advances 1,684,284 1,684,284 
Depretii!tion 317,867 1,729,815 2,047,682 
General administration 27S1372 3.198,195 3,473,S67 

Total operating expenses 2$,09S1112 16,101,489 44,196,601 

Operatins Income (loss) (34,381) (54,184) (88,565) 

Nonoperatlng Revenues (Expcnsos) 
Investment Income 931_904 45,612 139,516 

Change In Net Position 59,523 (8,572) 50,951 

Net Position, Beginning 1,4761214 277,353 1,753,567 

Net Position, Ending $ 1,535?37 s 268,781 $ 1,804,518 

See Notes to Fln.inclal Statements 



Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Cash received from customers 
Cash paid for goods and services 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Cash Flows from Noncapltal Financing Activities 
Cash used for debt service: 

Principal 
Interest 

Net cash provided (used) by noncapltal 
financing activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Acquisition of capital assets 
Proceeds received on sale of capital assets 
Investment Income received 

Net cash provided (used )by investing activities 

Net change In cash and cash equivalents 
(restricted and unrestricted) 

Cash and C.ish Equivalents, Beginning 

Cosh and Cash Equivalents, Endlns 

Reconclllatlon of Operating LO$S to Net Cash 
Provided by Operating Act ivities 
Oporotlna Ion 
011pr0clGt1on 
Gain on solo of capital auou 
Amortization of prepaid powor 
Amortization or unearned revenue • power transmission 
AmortlzMlon of bond premiums nnd discounts 
(lncreaio) dccroa,o In opor~ilng ouots 

Accouri t, rccelv.1ble 
Prcp:,ld Items 

lncre,u c (dacreaso) In oparMlng llabilltlos 
Accounts payablo -
unearned revcH1u11 
f>avablc 10 customers 
Customer coll~111r11I and othor doposh1o 
Due to other funds 
Accrued Interest 

NC!t cash provided (u1ed) by opera\lns 3Cl lvltles 

See Notei to Financial Stotements 

ATTACHMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Funds 
Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Power 
Morkotin8 

8usincss•tvpa Activities 
Enterprise Funds 

Power 
Delivery Totals 

S 27,321,652 
(1§,090J609) 

$ 14,371,403 
(14,370,378) 

$ 41, 693,0SS 
(40,460,987) 

1,231,043 1,025 1,232.068 

(740,000) (740,000) 
(1,049,840) {1,049,840) 

__ @,789,840) (1,789,840) 

(77,964) (77,964) 

113,452 51,622 16S,074 

113,452 (26,342) 87,110 

(445,345) (25,317) (470,662) 

5,395,513 1,919,727 7,315,240 -
$ 4,950,168 s 1,894,410 $ 6.844,578 

$ (34,381 I $ (S4,184) $ (88,565) 
317,86? 1,729,81S 2,047,682 

1,809,943 1,809,943 
(283,488) (l ,67S,628) (1,959,116) 

5,99S 5,995 

(313,339) (270,009) (583,348) 
39,428 (3,338) .36,090 

(SO,O?i) 32,611 (17,461) 
(59,726) (45,129) (104,S&S) 

(284,233) 380,38? 96, I 54 
73,845 (GS,523) 8,322 
12,9!)6 (27,977) (14,981) 
!3,792) 13,792) 

s 1,231,043 s 1,025 $ 1,232,068 
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ATTACHMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Vear Ended June 30, 2020 

Note l - Summary of Significant Accounting Pollcles 

Reporting Entity 

The Colorado River Commission of Nevada (the Commission) is responsible for m,maging the State of Nevado's 
lntere~ts In the water and power resources available from the Colorado River, 

Seven commissioners have broad statutory authority to govern the Commission, which constitutes the reporting 
entity. The Commission, as a component unit of the State of Nevada (Nevada or the State), is also an Integral 
part of that report ing entity. There are no other entitles for which the Commission Is flnanclally accountable, 
thus requir ing them to be reported as component units of the commission. 

All of the Commission's cash receipts and disbursements are processed and recorded by the State's Controller. 
Budgetary and cash controls are imposed by the State Controller on the Commission's general and special 
revenue funds, while other State-Imposed cash control requirements apply to the Commission's enterprise 
funds, The Commission maintains Its own revenue, expense and general Journals and a general ledger. 

80111 of PrHent~tlon, Mea&urement Focus, and 8a&ls of Accounting 

aa11, of PrHentatlon 

The financial 5tatement5 have been prepared In conformity with accounting prlnclples senerally accepted In the 
United States (GAAP) applicable to govl'!rnment uniu as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASS), principally GASB Statement lljo, 34, BCJffC Flnonclol Statements- ond Monogement'5 Dl1cuss/on 
and Analysis - for State and local Governments, as amended, along with related pronouncements. The GASB Is 
the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting ond financial reportlns principles. 
The Commission Is not subject to resulatlon by federal or state utility regulatory bodies such as the Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission or the Nevada Public Utllltles Commission. 

The preparation of financial statements In accordonee with GAAP requires the use of est imates and assumptions 
that affect cNtaln reported amounts and disclosures, some of which may require revisions In future periods. 
Accordingly, actual results could differ from these estimates and au umptlons. 

Government-wide /lnonclol statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities dis play 
Information on all of tho actlvltlu of th!! Commission. Ellmlnatlon$ have been made where appropriate to 
minimize the doubie counting of Internal act ivities. These statements dlstlnsulsh between the Commission's 
aovarnmcnta/ and buslnf!ss-typo 11ctivltles, Governmental activities generally ilre flni!nted through Inter­
governmental revenues and other exchange transactions. Buslneu,type activities are financed primarily by feos 
charged to c~tornal parties. 

The stotemont of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and progrilm revenues. Direct 
expenses are those that are specifically auocloted with a program or function and, therefore, are clollrly 
ldentHlable to that particular program or funct ion. Cortaln Indirect com are Included In the program expen5e 
reported for indivldur1I functions and !!tllvltles. Progr;im revenues consist of charges paid by the recipients of 
services offered by the programs. Revenues thot arc nol classlfled as program rcvenul!S are presented as 
general revenues. 
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ATTACHMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Vear Ended Junl! 30, 2020 

Fund flnonc/ol statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the Commission's funds. 
Separate statements for each fund catesory ~ QOVernmentof and proprlt!tary - am presented. The emphasis of 
fund flnanclal statements Is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed In o separate column, 
Any remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and roport@d as non-major funds. 

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from oKchange transactions .inociated 
with tho principal activity of the fund, Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up 
essentially equal values, Non-operatlns revenues of proprietary funds Include lnvostmGnt C?arnlngs and revenues 
resulting from ancillary activitlC?s, 

The Commission reports tho fol lowing major governmental funds: 

General fund - Tho gonerol fund Is the Commission's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial 
resources of the gener;il government, eJ<cept those required to be accounted for In another fund. 

Rtmtort:h and Develonment fvnd - This fund is used to account for the Lower Colorado River Multi-Species 
Conservation Program (LCRMSCP or MSCP), a flfty•year program that provide$ for Endansered Species Act {ESA) 
compliance. The program is administered by the United States Bureou of Reclamation (USBR) and the Fish and 
WIidiife Service. Program costs arc paid by the USBR and the States of Nevada, California ,md Arizona. Nevada's 
share of Program funding is paid p;irtially by the Southern Nevada Water Authority (paid directly to the USBR), 
and partially by the Commission's hydropower customers, The fund accounts for the collection and remittance 
or the Hydro power customers' portion of the progr.irrt , In addition, certain program reserves are maintained In 
the fund for future MSCP needs, Those reserves are contractually committed to the MSCP program. 

Additlon11lly, the Commission reports the following major enterprise funds: 

Power mc,rketlnr, enterprise fund, This fund operates as a public utility and accounts for the activities of 
providing electrical power generated at a federal facili ty to Its customers, 

Power delivery enterprise fund. This fund is used to account for the construction and operation or power 
trammlsslon equipment for the Southern Nevada Water Authority (SNWA), 

Mtcnurtmtnl Focu, and lent, of Accountln9 

Govcrnmcnt•wlde and proprletr;,ry fund f lnc,nr:1'11 st'1tements. The govemrnent•wlde and proprietary fund 
flnanclal statements arc prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accruol basli of 
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned, and expanses arc recorded at tho time llabllitles are incvrred, 
regardleu of the timing of related cash flows. For the year ended June 30, 2020, there were no non-exchange 
transactions (those for which the Commission &Ives, or recalvcs, value without directly receiving, or giving, equal 
v;Jlua In excho!'lge) raportod In the accompanying fln:inclal statements. 
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ATTACHMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Govf!rnmcnto/ fund finonclal statements. Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resourcC!s 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. R!!Vllnues, principally charges for services and 
lnvostmllnt Income, are susceptible to accrual and, therefore, recognized when measurable and available. 
Revenues are considered to be ovollable If they ore col lected within sh<ty days after year end. Expenditures 
generally arc racordsd whsn the related liability is incurred, except for principal and Interest on sonoral long• 
term debt, claims and Judgments, pension llabllltles, and compensated absences, which are recognized as 
ei<pondlturos only when payment is due. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital 
leases are reported as other flnanclns sources. 

It is the Commission's policy to use restricted resources first when both restricted and unrostricted (unassisned) 
resources arc available for use, and then unres tricted (unassigned) resources as needed. 

AsHII, Liabilities, and Equity 

Cash Equivalents 

The Commission's restricted and unrestricted cosh Is deposited with thB StatB Treasurer (the Treasurer) In a 
fund similar to an external Investment pool (Notes 3 and 4). Because the amounts deposited with the Treasurer 
are sufficiently liquid to permit withdrawals In tho form of cash at any timo without prior notice or penalty, they 
arc doomed to be cash equivalents. 

State st:itutes authorlzo tho Treasuror to lnve~t the Commission's deposits In certain obligations of tho United 
States of America, or Its agencies or lnstrumentalltles, and of stote and loco I governments, as well i15 other 
financial lnstrumonts speci fied in Section 355.170 of Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS). The Treasurer Is also 
permitted by statute to lend its securities to broker-de:1lers ond other entitles with a slmuhaneovs ilgreement to 
return tho collateral for the i amfl securities in the fvture. The Commission had no outstanding securities lend Ing 
transactions as of June 30, 2020. 

Deposit valves reflect unrea,llzed gains and losses on Invested funds as reported by the Treasure,. 

Rec1lvablH and PavablH 

All outstandlns balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds". 

Slnc11 sales arc made only to customers who are known lo have acceptilble credit ond no bad debts have cvor 
been sustained, an allowance for uncollectlble .iccounts Is not con&lderod to bC! necessary. 

Prepaid Power 

The Commission hos participated with the State In funding the Improvement and renovation {"uprotlne") of tho 
electrl~al powl.!r 111mer<1tlon plont .>nd visitor,• conter at Hoover Dam, which supplies the majority of the power 
sold through the power morketing fund. These costs are to be reimbursed In the form of power consumption 
and charged to eMpense over the estimated useful Il le of 30 years. 
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lte1tricted Cash and Cash Equivalent, 

ATTACHMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

The varlou$ resourc;es that ;ire limited as to use by bond co11enants for debt scr11lce, operation and maintenance 
(O&M), and capital Improvement .ind construction (acquisition) are classified as restricted cash and cash 
equivalents. Net position is restricted to the e><tent restricted assets exceed related liabllltiM and contractually 
with regard to certain operations and maintenance costs. 

Capital Assets 

Purchased or constructed c;apltal assets are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets 
are reported at ocqulsltlon value. The capitalization threshold is $5,000. 

Major outlays for capital assets and Improvements are capltallzod as projects are constructed. Interest Incurred 
during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities, if any, Is Included as part of the 
c;apltalized value of the ,mets constructed. 

Capital assets of the Commission are depreciated using the straight-line method 011er their useful lives currently 
estimated os follows: 

Governmental Acth1.lllits 
Office equipment 
Offl,e furniture ond fixtures 
Automobiles 

Business-type Activities 
Power transmission systems 
omee equipmen\ 
Automobiles 

~ 
5 
5 

4-6 

Years 
10-50 

5 
4-6 

Estimated useful lives are determined by the State and the Commission has no authority to altor th!! estimated 
useful lives prescribed by tho Stote. 

C:omptn1altd Ab1tnct1 

It Is the Commission's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay 
benefits. All vacation and sl~k pay I$ accrued when lnc:1.Jrred In the govcrnmcnt•wlde and proprietary fund 
flMnclol statements. A liability for these amounts Is reported In governmental funds only If they have motured, 
for example, as a result of employee resiKmtllons and rell rements. 

Multlple-Employer Coat-Sharing D•flnecl Benefit Pen1ion Plan 

The Commission u5es the nme basis used In the Public Employees' Retirement System of Nevada's (PERS) 
Comprehensive Annual Flnanclal Roport for rnportlng Its proportionate share of the PERS ,ollective net pension 
liability, deftmed outflow5 and Inflows of resources re lated to pensions, and pension expense, Including 
Information related to PERS fiduciary net position. Benoflt payments (Including refunds of employee 
contributions) are recognlrnd by PERS whim due and P11Vi1blc In .iccordonce with the benefit terms. PERS 
Investments arc reported at fair voluc. 
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Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net po$ltlon or fund balance that applies to future 
periods; ond therefore, will not bo recognized os an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then, The 
government-wide statement of net position reports l) the changes In proportion and differences between 
actual contributions and proportionate shore or contributions rclatC'!d to pensions, which will be amortized over 
the average expected remaining service life of ;ill employees th11t are provided with pension benefits, 2) the net 
difference between projected ond actual earnings on pension pion investments, which are deferred and 
amortized over five years, and 3) contributions for pensions and OPEB made subsequent to the measurement 
date, which will be recognized In the subsequent yeor, 

Deferred Inflows of resources represent an acquisition of not position that applies to a future periods(s) and so 
will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time, The government-wide statement of 
net po5ltlon reports 1) the dlfference5 between expected and actual 0)(perlence and changes of assumptions, 
which will bo amortized over the average expected remaining service life of all employees thot arc provided with 
pension benefits, 2) the net difference between projected and actual earnings on investments, which will be 
amortized over five years, and 3) changes In assumptions ot other inputs to the total OPEB llablllty which aro 
deferred and amortized over the overage expected rcmalnfng service life of all employees that are provided with 
health benefits. 

unearned Revenue 

Unearnod revenue represents advanced funding to the Commission from certain customers for the construction 
of electric power facilities to provide power for the customer's operations. ThClS(! facllltllls are dedicated to the 
exclusiv!! use of those customers and are the only existing method of delivery of electrical resources for their 
operations. Recovery of the cost of the facilities Is o component of the cost or power resources provided and Is 
being rccognlred over the life or the M_feU as the assets ;ire consumed (depreciated). 

Long•ltrm Obtlgollon• 

In the accompanying government-wide and proprietary fund flnonclal statements, long-term debt and other 
long•t~rm obligations are reported as liabllltles. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortltcd over 
the life of the bonds using the straight-line method. Issuance costs are o,cpensod as Incurred. 

Fund lqully or Ntl Po1lllon 

In the fund financial starnments, governmental funds report five classlflcatlons of fund balance. Nonspcnd4ble 
;)re amounts that are not In spendable form or arc legally or contrnctu.illy required to be maintained Intact. 
Rcstrlctod Is the result of constraints placed on assets that are externally Imposed by creditors or Imposed by 
law through c:orut!tullonol provisions or enabling leglslatlon. Committed :ire :.mounts set aside by formal action 
of the Commission's m(!mbl!rs. Formal Commission action Is also required to modify or rescind an !!stobllshed 
commitment. Assigned Is the result of constraints on amounts Imposed by the government's Intent to be used 
for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. 
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In the government-wide statements, equity is classified as net position and displayed In the following three 
components: 

Net Investments in C@oital Assets -This Is the component or net position that reports the difference between 
capltnl nssots less both tho accumulatod depreciation and the outstanding bal,ince of debt, excluding 
unexpended proceeds, that Is directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or Improvement of those 
assets. 

Rgstrjctcd - The component of not position that reports tht! constraints placed on the use of ,mets by either 
tixtti rnal parties and/or enabling legislation. 

Unrestricted • The difference between the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabllltlcs, and deferred 
Inflows of resources that Is not reported In Not lnvostment In Ci!pital Msets or Restricted Net Position. 

Chan11e In Accounting Policy 

The Commission changed Its accounting policy during the year with respect to how tho Stale of Nevada 
Treasurer's Interest Is accounted for In the General Fund. In previous years, a portion of the Interest wos 
allocated from the General Fund to the other funds in a manner similar to tho allocation of overhead 
expenses. In the current ycor, monagoment determined that this allocation to other funds Is unnecessary 
since the other funds each receive their own allocation of Interest from the Stato or Nevada. This ni!W 

method Is preferable to the Commission as mi)Mgement believes it more accurately reflects the Income 
attributable to e<1ch fund. The cumulative impact of tilts change In policy on net fund bolanco cannot be 
determined; therefore, the policy change has boon applied prospQctively. However, in the current year, the 
change In the General Fund balance w,15 c1ppro)(irnately $44,000 higher under the new method than It would 
have been under the previous nllocallon method. 

Note Z • Stewardship, Compllance, and Accountability 

Budgetary lnfcumatlon 

Blcnnlol budgets aro adopted on a basis consistent with the accounting policies applied for financial rcporllng 
pur1101e5 by the Commlulon under GAAP except that encumbrances for goods and services not received by 
fisca l year end arc considered O)(pondlturcs of the currnnt period solely for budget;,ry purposes. There were no 
encurnbronces outstanding at the beginning or end of the year. Although budgets arc adopted on a biennial 
basis, each year Is treated separately and unexpended budget authorizat ions lapse at each voar end, 

Prior lo September l or each ovon•numbored year, the State's Director of Administration submits proposed 
operating budgets to the Nevoda Budget Olvlslon covering tho biennium beginning the following July 1. After 
rovlcw of the budgets by the Nevoda Budget Division between Soptembcr 1 and November lS, hcarlnss 
Involving the Commission, the Director of Admlnlstr3tlon and the Governor arc hold botwean November 15 and 
December 22. of each budget year. The biennium budgcts are transmitted lo the State Leglsloturc no lotc, thM 
the 10th day of the legislative sculon held In odd-numbered years and, for adjourning, tho Leslsl.iturc cinacts the 
budgets. 
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Net expenditures of the general fund (gross expenditures less amounts allocated to other funds) are controlled 
by budget categories (personnel services, travel in-5tate, travel out-of-state, operating expenses, and caplrol 
outloy for the general fund; and general and administrative and Intergovernmental for the special revenue 
fund). 

Management of the Commission cannot amend any budget categories. However, the Director of Admlnlstrotlon 
Is authorized to approve requests for changes In the budget Involving transfers between expenditure categories 
not exceeding 10% of originally budgeted expenditures, or $30,000 In the aggregate, of the respective budget 
categories. Any changes exceeding 10% or $30,000 require approval of tho State Legislature's Interim Finance 
Committee. 

8udg■lary Information 

Following Is o brief summary of the covenants Included In the bond resolutions of the enterprise funds: 

The Commission Is required to charge purchasers of services ond all users of the State facllltles sufficient 
amounts to cover all operation and maintenance expense$ (ei<tept depreciation), all debt service requirements, 
and any amounts required to be deposited in reserve occounts. 

Monthly trnnsfers for debt service - A debt service occount Is required to ensure payment or Interest and 
principal when due. Transfers are made each month from revenues to provide 1/6 of the next semlonnual 
Interest payment and 1/12 of the annual bon~ principal payment. 

Clauei of users - The power marketing fund serves two c:hmes of users, retail utility customers and Industrial 
customers. Tho power delivery fund serves the SNWA and its customers. 

Other - Other requirements of the bond covenants Include maintaining bond funds In separate depository 
accounts with the State Treasurer and an 11udlt of the Commission's financial statements by an Independent 
certified public accountant. 

Durlns tho fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the Commission complied with all requirements of the bond 
,ovenanu. 
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At June 30, 2020, tho Commission's carrying amount of restricted and unrnstrictl!d cash and cash equivalent$ 
w;is $21,037,5119, These deposits with the Treasurer are not categorized as to credit risk, but are fully Insured by 
the FDIC or collatorollzed by the State's financial Institutions. Socuri tlos usod as such collateral must total 102 
percent of the deposits with each financi;il institution, 

Note 4 • Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equlvalMts restricted at June 30, 2020, by bond covenants or contractual agreements are 
summarized as follows: 

Restricted for: 
Debt service $ 1,051,894 
Reserve for revenue Insufficiency 261,018 
Cosh hold by contractual agreement 1,289,906 

Total restricted s 2,602,818 

Note S • Capital Assets 

Capital auet activity for the year ended June 30, 2020, was as follows: 

B<!glnnlng Ending 
Balances Increase Occroaso Balances 

Governmental Activities 
Capital assets being depreciated 
Office equipment s 45,374 $ s s 45,3?4 
Of/lee furniture and fi)(tures 25,574 720 ,4,854 
Automobiles 109,877 2?,420 82,457 

Total capi tal assets being 
doproclatcd 180,82!', 28 140 152,685 

less accumulated depreciation 
Office equipment 45,374 45,374 
Olflco turnlturi! and fixtures 25,574 720 24,854 
Automobllcs 93,S93 S,S94 27,420 71 767 

Total accumulated depreciation 164,S41 5,594 28,140 141,995 

Capital iU!ICt!I, net $ 16,184 $ 15, S94l $ $ 10,690 
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Beginning Ending 
Balances Increase Decrease Balante5 

BusiMss-type Activities 
C11pltol nsets being depreciated 
Power transmission system s 88,278,263 s $ $ 88,278,263 
Office equipment 40,683 8,345 49,028 
Automobiles 389,416 69,619 4S9,035 

Total capital assets bolng 
depreciated 88,708,362 77,964 88.786,326 

Less accumulated depreciation 
Power transmission system• 41,333,418 1,993,496 43,325,914 
Office equipment 32,783 13,059 4S,842 
Automobllos 210,396 41,127 251,523 

Total accumulated depreciation 41,576,597 2,047,682 43,624,279 

Capital assets, Mt s 47,131,765 $ p,969,718) $ $ 45,162,047 

Depreciation e><pcnso was charged to functions/programs as follows: 

Governmental Activities 
General government $ 5,594 

0uslncss•t~c Activities 
Powcu mar etlng 317,867 
Power delivery 1,729,81S 

$ 2,053,276 

Note 6 • Balances Due to/from Other Funds 

Tho composition of lntcrfund balances, representing tho net of short-term working capital advances and 
repayments, as or June 30, 2020, was as fol lows: 

Funds Due From Due To 

General $ $ 227,765 
Power marketing 17,534 
Power delivery 210,231 

$ 227176S J 227,765 
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Note 7 - Unearned Revenue 

The Commission has recognized two primary liabil ities for unearned revenue, one each In the two enterprise 
funds, One llablllW Is recorded In Power Oellvery Project Fund (PDP) and Is rnlated to the electric power 
transformation and transmission facilities serving the SNWA water treatment and distribution facllltles ot lake 
Mead and In Henderson, Nevada. The other lloblllty Is recorded In the Power Marketing Fund and is related to 
the Basic Step-down Yard facilities serving the Commission's retail Hydropower customers at the lndustrlol 
complex also In Henderson at a different location. These llobllltlcs represent custom or advance funding for 
Commission owned and operated facilities to provide power for their operations. 

Tho PDP facllltios were constructed through the issuance of State of Nevada General Obligation Bonds In 
September of 1997, September of 1999 and In April of 2005. The focllltles constructed are dedicated to the 
SNWA water related assats and ara being used to deliver electric power to the water operations, The cost of the 
facilities In the form of the bond payment obligation was a component of the charges ror power as the 
Commission delivered electricity to tha SNWA. In 2011 and again in 201s the SNWA prepaid the debt obligation 
and ultimc1tely el<tlrigulshed the Commission's Bond llablllty, This c><tlngulshment constltutl!d a prepayment for 
o port ion of tho future cost or the electric resources related to facility use as power will be delivered lri the 
future. The Cornm!$5lori recorded the prepayment and recognizes the revenue from the prepayment lri concert 
with tho depreciation or the physical assets to ma~ch the revenue to the relc1ted depreci.ition costs as the 
facilities are used, 

The Basic Step-Oowri vc1rd facllltles were cons~ructed beginning In 1999 through 2002 and were funded through 
assessments on the retail customers- as tho facilities were built. Due to the number or customers Involved there 
was no need to enter Into debt to fund ~he construction and the project was complotcd through customer 
advance funding. Tho facllltlcs and a lla,blllty in the form of unearned revenues were recorded and the 
depreciation and revenue have been recognized over the life of tho assets from tho boglnnlng. 

$44,206,444 of the total unearned revenue balance at June 30, 2020 relates to construction and facilities and Is 
being amortized over various usaful lives as determiMd during construction for Phase I, Phase II and River 
Mountains, and over an average life of the 39.5 years for the Boslc Stcp,down Yard. Tho remaining balance In 
unearned revenue primarily rolotos to amounts rocoivlld for services not yet reridered as of June 30, 2020. 

Future amortization of Unearned Revenue relating to construction and facllitle5 will be recog11lzed H follows: 
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2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 • 2030 
2031- 2035 
2036 • 2040 
2041- 2045 
2046 - 2050 
2051 • 2052 

s 

s 

1,959,115 
1,959,115 
1,959,115 
1,959,115 
1,944,655 
9,716,292 
9,594,844 
8,523,417 
4,163,256 
2,202,233 

225,287 

44,206,444 

During the year ended Juno 30, 2020, tho Commission recognized total revenue of $1,959,115 relii!ted to the 
amortization of construction and facilities unearned revenue. 

Note 8 • Long-term Debt 

General Obligation Bonds 

Section 3 of Article 9 of the Nevada State Consti tution limits public debt to 2% of the State's ;messed valuatlon. 
The leglsloture may outhorlze debt that Is not subject to the foregoing !Imitation to protect and preserve, or 
obtain the benefits of, any of its property or natural resources. The bonded debt incurred to fund the State's 
share of the cost of uprating electrlcal generating facilltles at Hoover Dam docs not affect the legal debt margin, 
becaurn it was incurred to obtain the be(leflts or the facili ty. 

On March 12, 2014, because of delays In determining a final allocation of shared co$tS, Interim bond5 of 
$28,425,000 were l55ued to fund the Commission's expected share of the cost of construction of the visi tor's 
center at Hoover Dam, with e)(pendltures charged to prepaid power. In June 2014, the Comml5$lr;m sold the 
$29,475,000 Serles 2014E General Obligation Refundlna bonds, proceeds from which were used to pay ofr the 
Interim bonds. These bonds mature annually on October 1, 2015 through 2043, with lntenHt payable 5eml• 
annually on Ottober 1 al'ld Aprll l at onnual rotes of .SO% to 4.25%. 

General obligation bonds outstanding at year end are summarized as follows: 

811slness•type Activities 
Maturity 

Oates 
Interest 
Rate5 

Outstanding at 
June 30, 2020 

General obligation rcful'ld lng series 2014E 2015 • 2043 a.so to 4.25% $ 26,740,000 
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for long-term debt consisting of general obllgc1tlon bond5 are 85 
follows: 

Total 
Vear ending June 30, Prlncleal Interest Re9ulrements 

2021 $ 755,000 $ 1,033,573 $ 1,788,S?3 
2022 770,000 1,014,880 1,784,880 
2023 800,000 993,670 1,793,670 
2024 815,000 970,653 1,785,653 
2025 835,000 945,058 1,780,058 
2026 • 2030 4,655,000 4,257,998 8,912,998 
2031 • 2035 5,610,000 3,265,808 8,875,808 
2036 • 2040 G,sso,ooo 1,960,525 8,540,525 
2041 • 2044 5,920,000 515,950 6,435,950 

$ 26,740,000 $ 14,958,115 $ 41,698,115 

Change■ in Long-term Obligation, 

Changes In long-term obllgatlons during the yea ended June 30, 2020, are summorlied below: 

Balance Balance 
MYOl, 2019 Additions Reductions Juno 30, 2020 current 

Govommcntal Actlvltle$ 
Accrued componsoted obsences $ 458,109 $ 246,616 $ 186,316 s 518,409 $ 328,966 

Business-type Activit ies 
Gonoral obligation bonds 27,480,000 740,000 26,740,000 755,000 
UMn\Ortlzod bond discount !L43,877) 15,995) jl37,882j 

Total ? 27,794,232 $ 246,616 s 920,321 S27,120,S27 $ 1,083,966 

Acr;rved compen5<1ted .ib5ence5 are p11ld from the gener11I fvnd, 

Note 9 - Risk Manaaement 

The Commission Is exposed to various risks of loss relat~d to torts; theft of, damilge to, and de5tructlon of 
,met5; errors and omissions; .ind natural disasters. The Commission participates In tho State risk pool and Is 
liable lor payment of nominal deductible amounts. The State then becomes re5pon5ible for ,111 lones In excen of 
the nominal Insurance deductible. 
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The Commission may from time to time be II party to various lltlgatlon matters. It Is management's opinion, 
based upon advice from legal counsel, that the risk of financia l losses to the Commission from such lltlgatlon, If 
any, will not have a material adverse effect on the Commission's ruture rlnanclal position, resul ts of operations 
or cash flows. Accordingly, no provision has been made for any such losses. 

Arbitrage Rebate Requirement 

The federal Tax Reform Act of 1986 Imposes a rebate requirement with respect to some bonds Issued by the 
Commission. Under this act, an amount may be required to be rebated to the United Stiltes Treasury (called 
parbltrage''), for interest on the bonds to qualify for exclusion from gross Income for federal Income ta)( 
purposes. Rcbatable arbitrage Is computed as of each installment computation date. The arbitrage rebate 
calculation as of the most recent such date Indicates that no amount Is due. Future calculations might result In 
adjustments to this dotermination. 

Note 11 - Multiple-Employer Cost•Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

The Commission's employees are covered by the Public Employees' RetlrcmMt System or Nev.id a (PERS), which 
was established by the Nevada Legislature in 1947, effective July l, 1948, and Is governed by the Public 
Employees Retirement Board (the PERS Board) whose seven members are appolntC!d by the governor. The 
Commission does not !!><!!rcise any control over PERS. 

PERS Is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit public employees' retirement system which Includes 
both regular and police/fire members. PERS Is administered to provide a reasonable base Income to qualif ed 
C!mployees who have been employed by a public employer and whose earnings capacities have been removed 
or substantially impolred by age or disability. 

Benefits, as required by NRS, arc determined by the number of years or :iccrcdltad service at time or retirement 
and the member's highest average compensation In any 36 conse,ullve months with special provisions for 
members entering the system on or after Jonuary 1, 20101 and July 1, 2015. Benefit payments to which 
participants or their beneficiaries may be entitled under the plan Include pension benefit s, disability benefits, 
andsur~vor beneflts. 
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Monthly benefit allowances for members are computed as 2.5% of ,.werage compensation for each accredited 
year of service prior to July 1, 2001, For service earned on and after July 1, 2001, this multiplier Is 2.67% of 
averase compcnsotlon. For members entering the system on or after January l , 2010, there Is a 2.5% multlpllcr, 
and for regular members entering the System on or after July 1, 2015, there Is o 2.2S% factor. PERS offers 
several alternatives to the unmodified service retirement allowanco which, in general, allow the retired 
employee to accept a reduced service retirement allowance payable monthly durlne his or her llfotlme and 
various optional monthly poyments to a nomed beneficiary after his or her death. 

Post-retirement Increases are provided by authority of NRS 286.S75 • .579, which for members entering the 
system before January 11 20101 Is eciual to the lessor of: 

1. 2% per year following the third anniversary of the r;ommencernent of benefits, 3% per year following the 
shcth anniversary, 3.5% per year followlns the ninth anniversary, 4% per year following the twelfth 
anniversary and S% per year following the fourteenth ~nniversary, or 

2. Tho average percentage Increase in the Consumer Price Index (or the PERS Board approved lndell) for 
the three preceding years. 

In any event, a member's benefit must be lncreo_sed by tho percentages In paragraph l , above, if the benefit of a 
member has not been Increased at a rate greater than or equal to the average of the Consumer Price lnde~ (All 
Items) (or other PERS Board approved index) for the period between retirement and the date of increase. 

For members entering the system on or after January 1, 2010, the post-re tirement increases are the same as 
above, except that the increases do not exceed 4% per year. 

Regular members aro eligible for retirement at age 65 with 5 years of service, at age 60 with 10 years or service, 
or at any age with 30 years of service. Regulor members entering tho System on or after January l, l010, i!re 
ollglblc for retirement at .)ge GS with 5 years of service, or age 62 with 10 years of service, or any age with 30 
years of service. Regular members entering tho System on or after July 1, 201s, are ellgible for reti rement at age 
6S with S years of service, or at age 62 with 10 years of service or at age 55 with 30 years of service or any age 
with 33 1/3 years of service. 

The normal celling limitation on the monthly benefit allowances Is 7S% of average compensation. However, a 
member who has an effective date of membership before July 1, 1985, Is entitled too benefit of up to 90% or 
averase compen,atlon, Both regular and police/fire members become fully vcstod as to benefits upon 
completlon of five yoors or sorvlce. 

Tho authority of cstabllshlna and amondlng the obligation to make contributlon5 and member contribution rotes 
rests with NRS. New hlre5, !n i!gcnc!es which did not elect the employer-pay contribution (EPC) plan prior 10 July 
1, 1983, have tho option of solectln11 ono or two allornatlvo contribution plans, Contributions arc shared equally 
by employer and l!rnployce In which employce5 con take a reduced salary ond hove contributions made by the 
employer or can make contributions by a payroll deduction matched by the employer, 

The PERS basic funding policy provides for periodic contributions a1 a level pattern of co51 as of percentage of 
salary throughout an employee's working ll fc\imc In order to 11ccumulote suffic ient assets to pay benefits when 
due. 
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PERS receives an actuarial vt1luation on t1n annual basis for determining the prospective funding contribut ion 
rates required to fund the system on an octuarlal reserve basis. Contributions actually made ;ire in 11ccordance 
with the required rates established by NRS. These statutory rates are Increased/decreased pursuant to NRS 
286.421 and 286.450. The actuorlol fundlnB method used Is the ontry age normal cost method, It Is intended to 
mel'.lt the funding objective and result In a relt1tively level long-term contributions requirement as a percentage 
of salary. 

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the required contribution rates for regular members were 15.25 percent and 
29.2S percent for employer/employee matching and EPC, respectively. Contributions to the pension plan from 
the Commission were $465,000 for the year ended Juno 30, 2020, 

PERS collective net pension llablllty was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to 
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarij,ll valut1tion as of that dote. For this purposl!, 
certain actuarial valuation assumptions are stipulated by GASB and may vary from those used to determine the 
prospective funding contribution rates. 

The total PERS pension liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions (based on tho rosults 
of an experience study for the period July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2016 dated October 16, 2017), applied to all 
periods Included In the measurement: 

Inflat ion Rate 
Payroll Growth 
lnv«!stment Rate of Return 
Productivity Pay Increase 
Consumer Price Index 
Actuarial cost method 
Projected Salary Increases 

Other Assumptions 

2.75% 
5.00% lncludlng Inflation 
7.5% 
0.5% 
2.75% 
Entry age normal and level porcentogf! of payroll 
Regular: 4.25% to 9.15%; depending on service 
Pollcf!/Fire: 4.SS% to 13.90%, depending on service 
Rates Include Inflation and productivity Increases 
Same as those used In the June 30, 2019 funding actuarial valuation 

Mortality rates (Regular and Police/Fire) - For healthy members It Is the Headcount-Weighted RP-2014 Healthy 
Annuitant Table projected to 2020 with Scale MP-2016, set forward one year for spouses and beneficiaries. For 
ages less than SO, mortality rates are based on the He;idcount - Weighted RP·2014 Employee Mortality Tables. 
Those mortality rates are adjusted by tho ratio of tho mortality ratC! for healthy annuitants at age 50 to the 
mortality rate for employees at age So. The mortality rain ;Jre then projected to 2020 with Scale MP-2016. 

Tho mortollty tablo usod In thl! actuarial valuation to proJecl mortality rate5 for all disabled regular members Is 
the 1-lei!dcount - Weighted RP-2014 Disabled Retiree Table, sot forward four years. 

For pre-retirement members It Is tho Headcount - Weighted RP,2014 EmployoC! Tabll!, projected to 2020 with 
Scale MP-2016. 

Tho RP,2014 Hcadcount•Wclghtcd Mortality Tabios, set forward one year for 1pouuH ond boncflclarlcs, 
reasonably reflect the projected mort(llity cxpcril.111ce of the Plan as of the moasurC!mC!nt date. ThC! addltlonol 
projection of G ycon Is a provision made for future mortality Improvement. 
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PERS's pollcles which determine the Investment portfolio target asset allocation arc established by the PERS 
Board. The asset allocation Is reviewed annually and Is designed to meet the future risk and return needs of 
PERS, The Following target asset allocation policy was odoptcd as of June 30, 2019: 

As~et Class 

Domestic equity 
International equity 
Domestic fixed Income 
Private markets 

T11rget 
Allocation 

42% 
18% 
28% 
12% 

Long-term Geometric 
Expected Real 

Rate of Return • 

5.50% 
5.50% 
0.75% 
6.65% 

• These geometric rcturn ratcs arc combined to produce the long-term expected rate of 
return by adding the long-term expected Inflation rate of 2. 75%. 

The discount rate used to measure tho total pension liability was 7.50% as of June 30, 2019. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate 11ssumed that employee and employer contributions will be 
made at the rote specJfled by NRS. Based on thci assumption, PERS's fiduciary net position at June 30, 2019, was 
projected to be available to make all projected f~ture benefit p11_yments of current active ond Inactive 
employees, Therefore, the long-term expected rate.of return on pension plan investments (7.50%) was applied 
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability as of June 30, 2019. 

The Commission's proportionate share of the net pension liability at year end, calculo ted using the discount rate 
of 7.S0%, as well as what the Commission's proportionate share of tho net pension liability would be If It were 
calculated using a discount rate that ls 1"' lower (6.50%) or 1% higher (8.50%) than the current discount rate 
was as fol lows: 

Net ponslon liability 

1% Decrease in 
Discount Rote 

$ 9,268,638 

Discount Rate 

$ 5,986,027 

1% Increase In 
Discount Rate 

$ 3,257,344 

Detailed Information about PERS fiduciary net position Is available In the PERS Comprehensive Annual Flnonclal 
Report, available on the PERS website, www.nvpers.org undcr publications. 

The Commission's proportlonJte share (ii mount) of thc collcctlvi! nct ponslon liability was $5,986,027 which 
rnprnsonu 0.04390% of the collective net pension ll11blllty, which Is a decrease from the previous year's 
proportionate share of 0.0439S%. Contributions for employer pay dates within the fiscal year endod June 30, 
2019, were used as the basis for determining ei!th employer's proportionate share. Each employer's proportion 
of the net pension liability Is based on their employer contributions roli>llvo to tho total employer contributions 
for all omployers for the period ended June 30, 2019, 
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Year Ended June 30, 2020 

For the year ended Juno 30, 2020, the Commission's pension e><pense was $544,410 and Its reported deferred 
ovtflows and inflows of resources related to pensions were as follows; 

Deferred 
Outflows 

of Resources 

Difference between expected and a,tual experience 
Changes or assumptions or other Inputs 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on Investments 
Changes In proportion and differences between actual contributions 

and proportionate share of contributrlons 
Contributions subsequent to measurement date 

$ 

$ 

At June 30, 2019, the average expected remaining service life was 6.18 years. 

224,469 
243,606 

150,075 
465,000 

1,os3
1
1so 

Deferred 
Inflows 

of Resources 

$ 172,659 

297,783 

9S,238 

i 56S,680 

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contrlbutlMs subse~uent to the 
measurement date totaling $465,000 will bl! recognlted as a reduction of the net pension llablllty In the yeor 
ending Juno 30, 2021. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources ralatod to ponsloM will be recognized In 
pension expense as follows: 

Years ending June 30, 

2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 

Total 

Note 12 • Employee Benefit Plans -

$ 

$ 

24,306 
(101,880) 

51,313 
44,82S 
29,417 
4,489 

52.470 

Plan Descrlpt/011 - The employees of tho Commission participate In a cost-sharln8, multlple•employer, defined 
bonoflt postomployment plan admlnl$tered by the 8oi!rd of the Public Employees' Benefits Program of the Stelle 
of Nevada (PEBP). NRS 287.023 provides officers and omployoos ellglblo to be covered by any 11roup Insurance, 
plan of boneflts or medical and hospital service established purs1H111t to NRS 28? the option upon retirement to 
c;inr;el or continue any such covcraac. The cost to administer tho program Is financed through the contributions 
and lnve&tment eilrnlngs of the plan. The PEBP Board Is granted the i1Uthorlty to establish and amend the 
bl!neflt turms of the proaram. (NRS 287 .043) PEBP Issues a publicly available flnanclal report that Includes 
financial statements and tho required supplementary lnformittlon for the plan. That report may be obtaln11d 
from Public Employees' Benefits Progr.im, 901 South Stewart Stroot, Suite 1001, Carson City, Nevada 89701. 
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Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
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Vear Ended June 30, 2020 

Benefits Provided · Employees or the Commission, who meet the eligibility requirements for retirement and, at 
the time of retirement, are participants in the progr;im, have the option upon retirement to continue group 
Insurance pursuant to NAC 287.S30. NRS 287,0436 establishes a subsidy to pay an amount toward the cost of 
the premium or c0ntrlbution for persons retired from the Commission. Retirees assume any portion of the 
premium not covered by the State. The current subsidy rates can be found at pebp.state.nv.us. Benefits Include 
health, prescription drug, dental, and life Insurance covernge. As required by statute, benefits are determined 
by the number of years of service at the time of retirement and the Individual's Initial date of hire, Employees 
hired after December 31, 2011 are not eligible to receive subsidies to reduce premiums. The following 
lndlvidu.ils and their dependents arc cl lglblc to receive subsidies: 

Any PEBP covered retiree with the Commission whose last employer was the state and who: 
• Was Initially hired prior to January 1, 2010 and has at least five ye.irs of public service: or 
• Wa5 Initially hired on or after January 11 2010, but before January 1, 2012 and has at least fifteen 

years of public service: or 
• Was Initially hired on or after January 1, 2010, but before January 1, 2012 and has at least five years 

of public service and h;is a dis;ibility: or 

Any PEBP covered retiree whose last employer \VilS not the state t1nd who has been continuously covered under 
PEBP a~ a retiree since November 30, 2008. 

Contributions • The State allocates funds for payment of current and future post-employment benefits other 
than pensions as a percentage of budgeted p;i'yrolls to all State agencies, The required contribution rate for 
employers, as a percentage of covered payroll, for tho rlscal year ended June 30, 2019 was 0.0234, For the year 
ended Juno 30, 2020, these paymenls totaled $72,666 for the Commission, 

OPES I/obi/It/es, OPEB expense, deferred out/lows of resources ond deferred Inflows of resources ralotod to OPEB­
the Commission's net OPEB llablllty was measured as of Jun0 30, 2019. The total OPEB liability used to calculate 
tho net OPEB llablllty was determined by actu;irial v;iluation as of June 30, 2019. The Commission's proportion 
of the net OPES liability was based on the Commission's share of contributions to PEBP relative to the total 
contributions of all participating employers. At June 30, 2020 the Commission's proportion was 0.1627 percl!nt. 

For thc year end0d June 30, 2020. the Commission recognized OPES e1<pense of $123,S98. At Juno 30, 2020, the 
Commission reported deferred outflows of resources and dofcrred Inflows of resources related to OPEB from 
tho following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

Ch:inges of assumptions $ 48,851 $ 96,842 
Nut difference between projected .ind act1.Jal e.irnlngs 40,891 
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 72,666 

Total s 121,S17 s 137,733 
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Deferred outflows of resources relat@d to OPEB resulting from Employer contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date In the amount of $72,666 will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPES liability in the year 
ending June 301 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources 11nd deferred Inflows of 
resources related to OPEB will be recognized In OPEB expense os follows: 

Year ended June 30: 

2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 

Total 

$ (45,278) 
(37,633) 
(7,660) 
1,689 

$ (88,882) 

Actuarial Methods ond Assumption• The total OPEB llablllty In the actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions and other inputs applied to all periods included In the mcoiuremcnt, unless 
otherwise specified: 

Inflation Rate 
S.ilary Increases 

Investment Rate of Return 
Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 

2.50% 
0.50% productivity pay lncrnase, 2.68% average promotional , 
increilse 
3.51% 
7.5% lnltlol, 4.5% ultimate 

Mortollty rates for healthy Individuals were based on the RP-2014 combined healthy mortality projected to 2020 
with scale MP·2016. For healthy post-retirement Individuals, same assumptions were used, set forward one year 
for spouses and bcncflclarlos. Mortality rates for disabled individuals were based on the RP-2014 disabled 
retiree mortality projected to 2020 witt, scale MP-2016, set forward 4 yeors. 

The actuarial assumptions used In the June 30, 2020 valuation were bosed upon certoln demographic and other 
actuortal assumptions os recommended by tht:! actuary, In conjunction with the State and guidance from the GASB 
statement. 

D/uount Rote • The dls~ount rate basis under GASB i'S Is required to be consistent with a 20-Vear Munlclpal 
Bond Index. The Bond Buyer General Obllgotlon 20•8ond Municipal Bond Index Is used for the determlnotlon of 
th!! discount rate. The asseu In the trust as of June 30, 2019 are 1cm than the expected benefit payments In the 
first year; therefore, the crossover period Is assumed to be In the fi rst year, which provides additional support 
for continuing the discount rate at the 20-Year M1.mlcipijl Bond Index rote. The discount rate used to measure 
the total OPEB l!ablllty was 3.51%. 
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Sen5itlvlty of the OPES llc,b/1/tles to changes In the discount rate • The following presents the net OPEB llabHltles 
of the plans, as well as what each plan's net OPEB liability would be If It were calculated using a discount rate 
that Is 1-percentage-polnt lower (2.51 percent) or 1-porccntage-point higher (4.51 percent) than the current 
discount rate: 

1% Oecrcaso 
In Discount 
Rate 2.51% 

$ 2,499,732 

Current 
Discount Rate 

Rate 3.51% 

$ 2,267,166 

1% Increase 
In Discount 
Rate 4.51% 

$ 2,065,390 

sensitivity of the OPEfJ liabilities to chonges in the healthcare cost trend rates-Tho following presents the net OPE8 
llabllltles of the plans, os well os what @ach plan's Mt OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare 
cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentoire point higher than the current healthcare cost 
trend rotes: 

1% Oecreasc Currant 1% Increase in 
In Healthcare Healthcare In Healthcare 
Costs Trend Costs Trend Costs Trend 

Rate Rate Rate 

$ 2,103,441 $ 2,267,166 $ 2,461,652 

OPES plan fiduciary net position • Dlltaihid infprmat iO{' about the OPEB plans' fiduciary net position Is available In 
the separiltely Issued audited annual financial statements of the State of Nevada State Retirees' Health and 
Welfare Benefits Fund, Public Employe«?s' Bilnf!fits Program financial report. 

Note 13 • Joint Venture 

The Commlulon Is a member of the Sliver State Energy Association (SSEA). SSEA WilS established as a Joint 
vl!nturc through an lnterlocal agreement among the member agencies (Members), which, In addition to the 
Commission, Include tho City of Boulder City, Lincoln Power District No. 1, Overton Power District No. 5 and the 
SNWA. 

SSEA Is an ;usoclation of public agencies with the common goal of jointly planning, developing, owning and 
operating power resources to meet their own needs and those of their customers. The economies of scale 
produced by the SSEA offl!r Improved project development opportunities and power purchasing capabllltlcs. tho 
sharing of resources ond e1<pertlse, and the opportunity for jointly managed onorgy nocd$. 

As i!pproprlate projects ore selected for development, the Members Involved In each projccl <:nter Into a project 
service agreemont (PSA) Indicating each participating M~mber•~ allocation of project costs, 

The business and othor affairs of tho SSEA arc conductl!d by a Board of Directors conslsllne of one director 
appolnt1:d by each Member, Tlw appointed director moy, but need not be, o member of the governing body of 
the Member. 

42 



ATTACHMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Notos to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Financial Information regarding SSEA can b(! obtained by writing: 

Manager of Energy Accounting for 
the Sliver State Energy Association 

P.O. Box 99956, MS 115 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89193·99S6 

The SSEA website Is www.sllverstateenergy.ors/, 

Note 14 • Related Party 

The Commission is governed by seven corn missioners, three of whom ;ire appointed by the Southern Nevada 
Water Authority (SNWA) and four, Including the board Choir, appointed by the Governor. Thi'.! Commission and 
SNWA do not share staff members or members of mana~ernent. The SNWA, a local governmental organization, 
Is also one of the Commission's principal revenue payers (sec Table S In Statistical Section). In fisca l 2020, the 
Commission rl'.!cclved revenues from the SNWA for powet and water resources but milde no payments to the 
SNWA for anv purpose. The SNWA publishes a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report which can be seen on 
their website at SNWA.com. In addition, the Commission's capacities work with other public entitles, SNWI\, 
other $lates, and varlo1,1s governmental entitles In ulfllllng Its statutory rcsponslbllltlcs; howcvl'.!r, no other 
entity has representatives on the board. In fiscal 2020, SNWA accounted for revenue of $11,713,784. 
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Proportion of 
the colleetlvc 

Valuation Date net pension 
June 30, liabilltl 

2014 0.0479S% 
2015 0.04795% 
2016 0.04902% 
2017 0.04412% 
2018 0.0439S% 
2019 0.04390% 

ATTACHMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Proportlonato Sham of the Collective Net Pension Liability Information 

Multiple - Employer Cost-Sharing Defined Bencnt Pension Plan 
For the Flscal Year Endsd June 30, 2020 and Prior Nine Fiscal Years• 

Proportionate 
share of the PERS 

Proportionate collective net fiduciary net 
share of the pension liability position as a 
collcctlvc net as :i percentage percentage of 

pension Covered of covered the total pension 
llabillt~ !asset! ealroll ealroll liability 

$ 6,305,091 $ 2,348,229 268.50% 76.31" 
4,997,140 2,531,235 197.42% 75.13W. 
6,596,117 2,575,317 256.13% 72.23W. 
5,867,3111 2,701,732 217.17% 74.40"1 
S,993,734 2,856,435 209.83% 75.21"1 
5,986,027 2,970,488 201.52% 76.46" 

• Information for the multiple-employer cost-sharing defined benefit pension plan Is not available for years prior to 
the year ended June 30, 2014. As the Information becomes avai(able, this schedule will ultlmately !)resent 
Information for the ten most recent fiscal years. 
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Statutorily 
required 

Fiscal Year contribution 

2014 $ 527,504 $ 
201S 507,091 
2016 523,411 
2017 395,979 
2018 406,47? 
2019 423,042 
2020 460,007 

ATTACHMENT A 

Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Statutorily Requirnd Employer Contribution Information 

Multiple - Employer Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30; 2020 and Prior Nine Fiscal Years• 

Contributions 
In relation to Contributions 
the statutorily Contribution as a percent.age 

required deficiency Covered of covered 
contributions (~xcess) ea~roll ea~roll 

527,504 s s 2,348,299 22.46% 
507,091 2,531,235 2003% 
523,411 2,575,317 20.32% 
395,979 2,701,732 14.66% 
406.477 2,856,435 14.23% 
423,042 2,970,488 14.24% 
465,000 3,091,661 15.04% 

• Information for the multiple-employer cost-sharing defined benefit pension plan Is not available for yeau 
prior to the ycor ended June 30, 2014. As the Information becomes ovallt1ble, this schedule will ultimately 
present Information for the ten most recent fiscal years. 
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Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Sch(ldUl(l of Commission Contributions for Other Postemployment Benefits 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 ond Prior Nino Fiscal Years • 

2018 2019 2020 

Commission's proportion of tho not OPEB liability 0,1740% 0.1675% 0.1627% 

Commission's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 2,261,443 2,218,398 2,267,166 

Commission's covered payroll 2,891,310 3,167,417 3,105,221 

Commission's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 
as a percentage of its covered payroll 78.2152% 70.0381% 73.0114% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
OPE8 llablllty li.3300% 0.1205¾ 0.0166% 

• GASB Statement No. 75 require~ ton years of Information to be presented in this table. However, unUI 
ton years of data Is available, CRC will present Information only for those years which Information 
Is avallablc. 
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Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Schedule of Changes In Net Other Postemployment Benefits Llablllty and Related Ratios 

for the flscill Year Ended June 301 2020 and Prior Nine Fiscal Years • 

2018 2019 2020 

Contractually required contribution $ 68,235 
Contributions In relation to the contractually required 

$ S2,354 $ 7:1,662 

contribution 66,117 69,279 72,666 

Contribution exce5s (deficiency) (2,118) 16,925 4 

Commission's covered payroll $ 2,749,712 $3,167,417 $ 3,105,221 

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 
2.48% 1.65% 2.34% 

• GASB Stiltement No. 75 requires ten years of lnformntlon to be presented in this table. However, untll 
ten years of data is available, CRC wlll present Information only for those years which Information 
is available. 
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ATrACHMENT A 

EideBailly 
CPA1 & BUSINESS ADVISORS 

Independent Auditor'$ Report 

To the Members of the Colorado River Comml5slon of Nevada 
Colorado River Commission 
las Vegas, Nevada 

Report on the Financial Statements 
We have ,11,1dited the ,m;omp.inying f!nanc!al statements of the governmental activities, the business­
type octlvltlcs, and each major fund of the Colorado River Commission of Nevada (the Comml~slon), as 
of and for the year ended June 30, WW, and the rel ilted not,p$ ~ the fln~nclal stotemcnts, which 
collectively comprise the Commission's basic financial statements as listed In the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Manasement Is responsible for the preparation nd fa ir pres ntatlon of these financial statements In 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In the U(li ted States of America; th is Includes 
the design, Implementation, and maintenance of I tern al control relevant to tho preparation and fair 
prmcntotlon of financial statements that arc free f(OITl material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responslblllty 
Our responslblllty Is to express opinion$ on those financial statem1mts based on our ;rndit. We 
conducted our audit In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted In the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Avdlting Standards, 
Issued by the Comptrolier General oft e United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assuronco about whether th@ financial statements ,1re free from 
m11terlal misstatement. 

An audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures In 
the flnonclal stotements. Tho procedures selected depend on the auditor's Judgment, lnc;ludlng the 
assessment of the rl$k$ of materli!I misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In moklne those risk assessments, the auditor considers Internal control relevant to the entity's 
prnparatlon and (air presentation of the financial statements In order to deslan audit procedures that 
are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of Cl<presslns an opinion on the 
l'!ffectlvoness of tho entity's Internal control. Accordlnglv, we expren no such opinion. An audit also 
Include~ evaluating the appropriateness of accounting pollclos used and the roasonablcness of 
significant accounting estimates made bv management, ilS well ;is evillu.itlng the overall presentation of 
the flnonclal statements. 

We believe that thc audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 

Wh•t ln1plre, you, lri,plre, u,. Lei', t•llc, I 1ldeb1llly.com 
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Opinions 
In our opinion, the flnanclal statC!ments referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-typo .ictlvltles, and each major 
fund of the Commission as of June 30, 2020, and the rnspective changes In fin.incial position and, where 
applicable, c;ash flows, thereof, and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund and the 
Research and Development Fund for the year thon ended In accordance with .ic;coi.mtlng principles 
gener.illy accepted In the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis, schedule of funding progrus for the OPEB llablllty, and pension trend data on 
pages XX thro~h XX and XXX through XXX be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such Information, although not a part of the basic financia l statements, Is required by the Gov1irnmental 
Accounting Standords Boord, who considers It to be an essential P. rt of financial reporting for placing 
the basic financial statements In an appropriate operational, economle, or hlstorlcol context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the management's discussion and a~lysis and pension and OPES 
trend data, In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted In the United States of America, 
which consisted of Inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information i!nd 
compMlng the Information for consistency with management's responses to our Inquiries, the basic 
financia l 5tatements, and other knowledge we obtalnod during our audit of the basic fin<Jnclal 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provjde any assurance on the Information because tho 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufflcl n~ ovldMce t9 oxpress an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

Other lnformot/on 
Our audit was conducted for the purposti of forming opinions on the flnanclal statements that 
collectively comprise the Commi$sion's ba{!c financial statements. The introductory section and 
statistical section ~hown on pages XX through XX and XX through XX are presented for purposes of 
addltlonal analysis and are Mt a reciulr'ed part of the baiic financial statements. The Introductory 
section and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied In the audit of 
the basic financial &tat~mirnts and, accordingly, we do n1;1t e~pre55 an opinion or provide any assurance 
on them. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordanco with Govl!rnment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated XXXXXXXXX 
on our consideration of the Commission's Internal control over nnanclal reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisioM of laws, regulations, contrc1cts, grant agreements, and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of lnt@rnal control over financial 
reporting and complianco and the resul ts of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's Internal control over financia l reporting or on compliance. That report Is an 
lntcgrnl part of an audit porformed in accordance with Government Auditing Stondurds !n considering 
the Commission's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

EB Signature 

Las Vegas, Nevada 
XXXXXXXXX)( 
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ATTACHMENT A 

EideBailly .. 
(PA, 11, BUSINESS ADVISORS 

Independent Auditor'$ Repc;,rt <>n lntern;il C<>ntrol over Fln1;1nclal Reporting and on Compliance and 
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Flnanclal Statements Performed in Accordance with Government 

Auditing Standards 

To the Members of the Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Colorado River Commission 
Las Vegas, Nevada 

We have audited, In accordance with the auditing standards geMrally accepted in the United States or 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained In Government Auditing Standards 
Issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
(the Commission) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the relat!!d not!!s to the fin.tnci.tl 
statem!!nts, which collectively comprise the Commission's basic financial statements and have Issued 
our report thereon dated XXXXXXXXXX. 

Internal Control over Flnanclal Reporting 
In planning and potforming our audit of the financial stetements, we considered the Commission's 
Internal control over financial reportlns (lnterr:ial control) as a b:isls for designing audit procedures that 
arn appropriate in th!! circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the flnanclol 
statements, but not for the purpose of expresslns an opinion on the effectiveness of the Commission's 
Internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectivenen of the Commission's 
Internal control. 

A deficiency In Internal control exists when the design or operntlon of a control does not allow 
management or employees, In the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis, A mater/al weakness Is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in lntornal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a motcrlol 
mlutatement of the entity's financial st.itements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis, A significant deficiency Is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, In Internal control 
that IS less severe th,rn ii materlill wcilkn«m, yet lmportont enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance, 

Our consldcr.itlon of Internal control was for the limited purpose described In the fi rst paragraph of th is 
section and was not dcslKncd to Identify all dcflclcnclc, In Internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deflcionclos, Given these limitations, during our audit we did not Identify any 
deficiencies In Internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been Identified. 

What lntplrt1 you, ln,plrH u,. Let'• talk, I aldebailly,com 
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Compliance and Other M atters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Commission's financial statements are 
free from motorlol misstatement, we performt!d tt!sts of its compli,mce with certain provisions of lows, 
regulations, c:ontracts, and grant agreements, noncomplionce with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the financia l statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not CKprcss such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no Instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
rnported under Government Avditing Stondards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report Is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal tontrol ond 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's Internal control or on compliance. This report Is an Integral part of an audit performed In 
accordance with Government Auditing Stcmdords in ton5ldering the entity's Internal control and 
compliance. Accordlnsly, this communication Is not suitable for any other purpose. 

EB Si&nature 

Las Vegas; Nevada 
)(XXXXX X 



DATE 

To the Governing Body of the 
Colorado Rlv11r Commission of Nevada 
Las Vega$, Nevada 

ATTACliMENT A 

We have audited the flnonclal statements of Colorodo River Commission of Nevada (the Commission) as of 
ond for the year ended June 30, 2020, and have Issued our report thereon deted (OateJ . Professional 
standards require that we advise you of tho following matters relating to our audit, 

Our Ri:$pon,lblllty In Reh1t lon to the Financial Statement Audit under Generally Accepted Auditing 
Standards and Government Auditing Standards 

As communicated in our letter dated Sept11mber 28, 2020, our responsibility, as described by professional 
standards, Is to form and express an opinion about whether tho financial statements that have been prepared 
by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in al l material respects, In accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America. Our audit of the financial 
statements docs not relieve you or management of your respective responsibilities. 

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, ls to plan and perform our audit to obtoln 
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance obout whether tho financial statomonu are free of material 
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over flnanclol 
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that arc appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of cl<prosslng an opinion on the effectiveness of the E!ntity'$ intern.ii control over financial reporting. 
Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the Internal control of the Commission sol11ly for the purpose 
of determining our audit procl!dures and not to provide any assurance concerning such Internal control. 

We aro also rosponslblo for communicating significant m:itters related to the audit that are, In our 
profession.ii judgment, relevant to your responsibilities In overseeing the financial reporting process. 
However, we are not required ro design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to 
communicate to you. 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

we conducted our audit consistent with t11e planned scope ond timing we previously communicated to you; 
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ATTACHMENT A 

Compliance with All Ethic;$ Req1,1iremenu Reg11rd!11g 1!1dependenee 

The engagement team, others In 011r firm, i15 11ppropriate, our firm, and other firms utilized In the 
engogcmcnt, If applicable, have complied with all relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence. 

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity's Significant Accounting Practice5 

Significant Accounting Polle/es 

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policles. A summary of 
the 5lgnlflcont occo11nting pollcles adopted by the Commission Is included In Note 1 to the financial 
statements. There have been no initial selection of accounting policies during 2020. 

As disclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Commission changed Its accounting policy 
during the year with respect to how the Stale of Nevada Trnasurer's Interest is accounted for In the 
General Fund. In previous years, a portion of the interest was allocated from the General Fund to the 
other funds In o manner slmllor to the ollocntlon of overhead expenses. In the current year, 
managemMt dl!termlned that this allocation to other funds is unnecessary since the other funds each 
receive their own allocation of Interest from the State of Nevada. This new method I$ prC!ferable to 
the Commission as management believes it more accurately reflects the Income attributable to each 
fund. The cumulotlve lmpoct of this change In accounting policy on net position/ net fund balance 
cannot bl! determined; However, in the curreAt ye.ir, the change in the General Fund balance wos 
approximately $44,000 higher under the new method thon It would hnvc been under the previous 
allocatlon method. 

No matters have come to our attention that would require us, 1,1nder professional ~tand11rd5, to 
Inform you about (1) the me.thods used to account for significant unusual tr.insactlons and (2) the 
effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there Is a lock of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. 

Accounting estimates 11re .in lntegrol part of the flnonclol statements prepared by management and 
.ire based on m:in.igement's current judgments, Those Judgments are normally based on knowledge 
and e~perh:nce abo11t past 1md current events ond assumptions about future events. Ct!rtaln 
.iccountlng cstlm.1tcs are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the flnanclol 
statements and because of the posslbllltv that future events offcctlne them may differ markedly from 
management's current judgments. 

The mo~t sensitive accounting cstlm:itos :,ffcctlng the lln:inclal naiemcnts arc: 

• Othllr postomploymont benefit pl.ins' actuarial 11ccruod liabllltles 
• Pension plans' :ictu.irl.il accrued llabllltles 
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ATTACHMENT A 

We evaluated tho key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates and determined that it 
Is reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

Finonciof Statement Oisclosvres 

Certain financial statement disclosures Involve significant Judgment and are particularly sensi tive 
because of their significance to financial statomcrnt users. The most sensi tive disclosures affecting the 
Commission's financial statements relate to the disclosures associated with the defined benefit pension 
plan and the other post-employment benefits. Those are sonsltlva bacause they represent a significant 
percentage of the liabilities presented on the statement or net position. 

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of 
the audit. 

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements 

For purposes of this communication, professional standords requlre us to accumulate all known and 
likely misstatements Identified during the audit, ot er than tho5e that we believe arc trivial, ond 
cornmunlc:ote them to the appropriate level o managc;imcnt. Further, professional standards require 
us to also communicate the effect of uncorrected mis~tatement5 related to prior periods on the 
relevant clanes of transactions, <1ceou(.1t baloncos or dlsclosurcs, and the financial statements a5 a 
whole. 

The following mls5tatement5 that we lgentlflcd os a result of our audit proccduras were brought to 
the 
attention of, and corrected by, rnanagement: 

-- ---

Adjusll1111 Jourrwl El,trlos JE II 9 

To COITtCI d111lftcadon of·~·""· 

296-'1490,04•71 00 WATE!R STATE OWNllD BLDO RNT•B&O 

2QR-4490.04°70110 wnlft( 00E ConirnclA 

folll 

GASBEtttrlu• JEii 10 
To COl'ftol 111• Clpllll .... , dltpoHI In 0MB ,nt,y. 

296-4490•00•111ft3 NO • ,t,i11nmobllo• 

3S,2Hl,00 

35,219.00 

35,2111.00 

'5,218.00 

296-4400,04,7640 Oopradnllon opon■a • go111Jrnmonlnl ntd-..ido1 

OA-EB-t 803 /lli10mollil11a 

27,420.00 

27,420.00 

Total U,840.00 U.U0.00 



ATTACHMENT A 

The following summarizes uncorrected financial stotcmcnt mlsstotcmonts whose effocts in th!! 
curr!!nt and prior p!!riods, as determined by management, are immaterial, both Individually and In 
the aggregate, to the financial stotements taken os a whole. 

General Fund and Governmental Activities 
Certain revenues were recorded in the improper period, resulting in an understatement of 
recel\lables of $12,632, an understatement of revenues of $7,161, and an understatement of fund 
balanca / net position of $5,471. 

Gov~rnmcnt Activities Only 
Tile adjustments made for OPEB did not take the Impact of the lmpllclt subsidy Into account, resulting 
In an understatem,rnt of deferr!!d outflow of resources of $20,661, understatement of beginning net 
position of $20,356, and overstatement of expenses of $305. 

Power Delivery Fl;nd and 8vsiness-Type Ar:tlvit/es 
A vehicle purchase was accrued to an expense account In fiscal year 2020 w en the vehicle was not 
delivered until Ilse.JI year 2021, This resulted In an o\lerst11tement of accounts payable and expenses 
of $49,733. 

The effect of those uncorrected misstatements Is described abo\le for each respective fund as well as 
the government-wide financia l statements. 

Disagreements with Manaaemont 

For purposes of th is lotter, profosslomil standards define a disagreement with management as a 
matter, whether or not resolved to oµr satisfaction, concerning a flnanclol oceountlng, reporting, or 
auditing matter, which could be significant to the Commission's financial statements or the auditor' s 
report. No such disagreements arose during the course of the audit. 

Representations Requested from Management 

We tiave requested certain written representations from management which are Included in the 
monogement representation letter dated "ldote of management representation letter)" . 

M1n11ement'1 Consultations with Other Accountants 

In some coses, management may decide to consult with othor accountants about auditing and 
accounting mauers, Management Informed us that, ;,nd to our knowledge, there w<1rc no 
consultotlons with other accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters. 

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or IHuH 
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ATTACHMENT A 

In the normal course of our professional association with the Commission, we generally discuss a varlC!ly 
of matters, Including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, operating 
conditions affecting the entity, and operating plans and strategies that may offect tho ri sks of material 
misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted In a condition to our retention as the 
Commission's auditors. 

Other Information In Documents Cont11lning Audited Financial Statements 

Pursuant to profosslonal standards, our responsibility as auditors for other Information In documents 
containing the Commission's audited financial stotements docs not oxtond beyond the finandal 
Information Identified in the audit report, and we are not required to perform any procedures to 
corroborate such other Information. However, In occordonco with such standards, we have re;id the 
oth(!r information and considered whether such information, or the manner of its presentation, was 
materially Inconsistent with Its presentation In tho financlal statements. 

Our responsibility also includes communicating to you any Information which wo believe Is a material 
mlsstotemcnt of fact. Nothing came to our attention that caus~d us to believe that such information, 
or Its manner of presentation, Is materially Inconsistent with the Information, or manner of Its 
presentation, appearing In the financial statements, 

This report Is Intended solely for th<! Information ahd v~e of the Board of Commissioners, the Finance 
Committee, and management of Colorado RIVJ!r Commission of Nevada and Is not Intended to be and 
should not bo used by onyonc other tlrnn those specified parties. 

"Eide Bailly Signature" 

Las Vegas, Nevada 


